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We continuc. to believe that quuent® has the potential to be an
\:

effective and well—tolgrated [reatment for lupus patrents Our goal

is to complete our ongoing- Phase 3

o

clinical trial of RJquent in

order to gain approval to mr}lrket and sell: Riquent in the U S,

- ey

Europe and other countriés. : SRR

, /l,fl A

The commercial potential of a new ltreatment for lupus is l:irge

We believe the marketrpotenual for lupus can be compared t0 the
market potential forfmultlple sclerosns another l1fe—threatenmg
autoimmune disease affecting about 450 000 patients in the U S.and
Europe. In the cas{e of multiple scler051s, four drugs have been approved

in the last 10 ylears and account for about $4.5 billion in sales

/ . !
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UNIQUE FEATURES OF RIQUENT B
' o
-Unlike most treatments for lupus, quuent specifically rargets and
S~/
reduces fn&bf)dles to double- stranded DNA (dsDNA), whlch are

bel1e\/'f/:d to be thed Cause. of of lupus k1clney disease and other serious

-lq-‘-,
CDmpllcatlonS of lupus. Our clm1cal ‘urials to date have shown that

l
RJquent has an immediate onset of actlon and rapidly removes fromm. -

If

the bloodstream many of the c1rculat1ng antibodies to clsDNA It

I
also has a sustained effect on reclucmg the production of antibodies

| to dsDNA, by directly suppressing or killing only the B cells that

produce these antibodies. Furthermore, to date, quuent has been

.
well tolerated, with no signiftcant acllverse events attrlbuted to drug
treatment. This safety profile contrasts with current/treatments that
suppress the immune system and caln lead to serlous complications,

such as life-threatening infections.

|
.

“The not1on\ that novel

therapies can’ be developed \}:-. .
to specifically lower anti- ,
dsDNA ant1bocl1es in Y
the absence of associated
toxicities would l{ndoubt— b
edly be a giant leap ahead.”
Jill Buyon, M.D., Prof. lof
Medicine, New York Urli\l:ersiry

School of Medicine, Director,

//
Lupus Clinic, H05p1ta.l for//
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Riquent is one of the few drug candidates under deVeIopment that represents a highly

specific approach to treating disease. While other lupus drugs work by suppressing the
entire immune system, Riquent targets only the patlhogenic antibodies to dsDNA. The
specificity of Riquent is designed|to target disease-causing antibodies while preserving
the immune system’s ability to produce disease-fighting antibodies to protect the body

from infection and cancer.

CURRENT PHASE 3 TRIAL
Our Approvable Letter from the U.S. Food and

Drug Administration (FDA) states that we need
to successfully complete one additional clinical
benefit study. Based on the results of our previous
Phase 3 trial, we believe that the 100 milligram
{mg) dose used in that study may have been too
low. In our current Phase 3 trial, we are assessing
the clinical benefit of weekly treatment with
higher doses of Riquent, primarily 300 mg or
900 mg, compared to placebo. Enrollment into
the 100 mg dose group is being discontinued to
focus on the higher doses. Other enhancements

to the study have also been made which we

2 LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY
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believe will increase the probability of a favorable
outcome. The FDA has confirmed that this Phase 3

study retains its Special Protocol Assessment.

PROGRESS IN THE TRIAL TO DATE
The ongoing global Phase 3 trial has enrolled
more than 250 patients at 88 clinical trial sites,

with a targeted date for completion of enrollment

around the end of 2007.

In March 2007, we announced interim data
from this clinical trial indicating that patients
treated with 300 mg or 9‘00 mg per week of
Riquent had greater reductions in the levels
of antibodies to dsDNA than patients treated
with placebo. The results showed a significant
dose response when comparing all Riquent-
treated patients to placebo-treated patients

(p = 0.0001}), and each Riquent dose group to
the placebo dose group (p = 0.0032 for 100 mg,
p < 0.0001 for 300 mg and 900 mg).




Multiple Sclerosis Market lllustrates Potential for Riquent in Lupus*

-‘ Multiple sclerosist Lupus nephritis

Patients l 450,000 400,000

New treatments \ 4 in the last decade 0 in 40 years

Global sales $4.5 billion Similar potential

. |
* Patient demographics, disease effects, treatment goals and drug administration similar
! Revenue estimates based on publicly available data

Following eight weeks of treatment, the a significant red
{nedjan percent reduction in antibodies to dsDNA kidney disease.

for Riquent-treated patients compared with

uction in the incidence of acute

placebo-freated patients was 30% (100 mg), 40% To date, Riquent has been well tolerated in
I(300 mg), and 58% (900 mg). Approximately the ongoing Phase 3 study. The adverse event
three times as many patients treated with 900 mg profile for all patients in the study, including
of Riquent (42%) had at least a 50% or greater those treared with the 300 mg and 900 mg
antibody reduction ar week eight compared doses, does not atppear to differ from that seen
with patients treated with 100 mg (13%). in previous studies.

Patients reached their maximum reducrion

after four weeks of trearment. These results strengthen our belief about the

potential for a positive outcome from the ongoing

Plublished data from our earlier studies indicated Phase 3 trial.
that maintaining antibody reductions over time

in individual patients was associated with

LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY 3




Riquent is More Than the
Usual Phase 3 Opportum‘)ﬁc
|

|

* Interim Antibody Analysis: Significant dose response {(p=0.0001) and higher doses

well tolerated

« Favorable Regulatory Position: Approvable Letter, Fast Track, Special Protocol Assessment

and Orphan Drug Status

¢ New and Experienced Management Team: Leadership and team expertise focused on

Riquent's road to commercialization

¢ Quality Clinical Trial: Double blind, placebo-controlled, and randomized Phase 3 trial in

~730 patients (event driven)

+ Large Commercial Opportunity: Need for safe drugs remains unmet for an estimated

400,000 lupus nephritis patients

BEYOND RIQUENT

We also have developed highly targeted
inhibitors of SSAQ, an enzyme involved in
inflammarion. Qur SSAQ inhibitors are orally
active small molecules that could be used to
treat autoimmune diseases and inflammarory
disorders. We have generated encouraging
results in animal models of diseases such as
rheumatoid arthritis, multiple sclerosis, -
inflammatory bowel disease, stroke and acute
inflammation. We continue to explore
partnerships, joint ventures and other avenues

for funding the clinical development of our

SSAQ inhibitors.

4 LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY

STRENGTHENING OUR

TEAM’S CAPABILITIES

Given the emerging strength’ of the Riquent
program, we have continued to augment our
senior management team. In mid-2006,
Michael Tansey, M.D., Ph.D. joined us as
Executive Vice President and Chief Medical
Officer. He is a seasoned pharmaceutical
executive with broad experience in managing
clinical development programs at companies
such as Glaxo, Hoechst, Rhone Poulenc Rorer
and finally at Pharmacia Corp., where he was
Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice
President. Since 2003, Dr, Tansey has advised
more than 12 biotechnology companies in the
U.S. about their clinical trial programs.

Dr. Tansey’s contributions have already had a
major impact on strengthening our ongoing

global Phase 3 trial.
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With the strong and talented development

team now in place, we believe we can effectively

execute our Riquent Phase 3 clinical trial.

UPCOMING MILESTONES

We have set an aggressive agenda for 2007. We
expect to complete enrollment in the Phase 3
global trial and to identify and qualify a com-
mercial manufacturer for Riquent. In addirion,
we are working diligently to involve lupus
opinion leaders and patient advocacy groups

[0 ensure their support OFDLII' CffOf[S.

.

& LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY

At the same time, we are refining our commer-
cialization strategy, which is focused on
identifying partners to commercialize Riquent
outside the United States. We will potentially
retain commercialization rights in the United
States, where most lupus patients are treated at
a small number of medical centers. Based on
our assessment of the U.S. market, half of the
patients with lupus kidney disease are treated in
only 300 centers. We also are seeking potential
partners in an effort to capitalize on our other

assets and to pursue other opportunities.

We have already achieved a key milestone
for 2007. On April 4, 2007 we raised gross
proceeds of $34.8 million through the sale of

5.8 million shares of our common stock tn an

underwritten public offering.
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Today, more than at any other tlme in the Company’s hlstory, our strategy is
highly focused on reaching its goal of gaining approval'|of Riquent.

L

e

A SINCERE THANK YOU

Today, more than at any other tif}le in the
Company’s history, our strateg'); is highly
focused. Our long path to bring Riquent to
market seems to be on the final stretch and our
employees are dedicated to achieving this goal.
Their unrelenting commitment and the support
of our stockholders give us the confidence and

“"determination to reach our objective.

Sincerely,  ~

Dt GMesyrr
Deirdrc'Y. Gillespie, M.D.
President & CEQ

Craig R. Smith, M.D.
Chairman of the Board

8_ LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY
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We also plan to present several scientific papers, NN o
: \\\ . \\\\ N
mc]udmg the antlbody -reduction data from the . N N
Phase 3 trial, at the 8th Intcrnauonal Congress
/ on Systemic Lupus Erythf:matosus in Shanghal
L S 2
/7" in May 2007. y | L
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] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(dj OF THE SECURITIES
' EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR ;
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O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
' SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 0-24274

! LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL CdMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chanter)

Delaware
{State or other jurisdiction
! of incorporation or organization) Identi

6455 Nancy Ridge Drive, San Diego, CA 921

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (858) 452-6600
Securities registered pursuant 1o Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of each class: Name of each;exchange on which registered:
Common Stock, par value 30.01 per share The Nasdaq Global Market
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! FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

“The forward-looking statements in this report involve significant risks and uncertainties, and a number of
factors both foreseen and unforeseen, could cause actual results to differ materla]ly from our current expectations.
Forward-lookmg statements include those that express a plan, belief, expectation, estimation, anticipation, intent,
contmgency, future development or similar expression. The analyses of clmlcal results of Riquent®, our drug
candidate for the treatment of systemic lupus erythematosus (“lupus” or “SLE™), and any other drug candidate that
we may develop, including the results of any trials or models that are ongoing or that we may initiate in the future,
could result in a finding that these drug candidates are not effective in large patient populations, do not provide a
meanmgful clinical benefit, or may reveal a potential safety issue requiring us to develop new candidates. The
results from our current clinical studies of Riquent also may not be sufficient t(l) obtain regulatory clearance to
market Riquent either in the United States or any other country, and we may be required to conduct additional
clinical studies. There can be no assurance, however, that we will have the necessary resources to complete any
current or future frials or that any such trials will sufficiently demonstrate the safety and efficacy of Riquent.
Addluona] risk factors include the uncentainty and timing of: our clear need to raise capital to complete our current
clinical studies; obtaining required regulatory approvals, including delays assoctated with any approvals that we may
obtain; timely supply of drug product for clinical trials and for possible commercialization; our ability to pass all
necessary regulatory inspections; successfully marketing and selling our products, whether directly or through
collaboratlve relationships; our ability to make use of the orphan drug designation for Riquent; future profitability;
and our dependence on patents and other proprietary rights, as well as possible ac.tlons by. third parties against us
based,on their own intellectual property rights. Readers are cautioned to not place undue reliance upon forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof, and we undertake né) obligation to update forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date hereof. Interested parties are urged to
review the risks described below under the “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this treport and in other reports and
" registration statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission from tim¢ to time,

' | |

|
|
|
|
|
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: In this report, all references to “we,” “our,” and *“us” refer to La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company, a
Delaware corporation, and our wholly owned subsidiary. ‘ '

Item 1. Business
|
Ove;rview
! La Jolla Pharmaceutlcal Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1989 In October 2004, we established
a subSIdlary, La Jolla Limited, in England in connection with potential developmem efforts for Riquent® in Europe.
We are a biopharmaceutical company dedicated to improving and preserving human life by developing innovative
pharmaceutlcal products. Our leading product in development is Riquent, w]‘uch is designed to treat lupus renal
dlsease by preventing or delaying renal flares. Lupus is an antibody-mediated disease caused by abnormal B cell
productlon of antibodies that attack healthy tissues. Current treatments for this autoimmune disorder often address
only,symptoms of the disease, or nonspecifically suppress the normal operation (')f the immune system, which can
result in severe, negative side effects and hospitalization. We believe that quuem has the potential to prevent or
delay renal flares associated with lupus renal disease without these severe, negatlve side effects.

|
Recent Deve]opments

On March 8, 2007, we announced positive interim antibody results from our ongoing double blind, placebo-
controlled randomized Phase 3 trial of Riquent' Analyses of interim antlbody data mdlcate that patients treated with
900 mg or 300 mg per week doses of Riquent had greater reductions in antlbodles to double-stranded DNA
(“dsDNA”) than patients treated with 100 mg per week or placebo. The results showed a significant dose response
when comparing all Riquent-treated patients to placebo-treated patients (p < 0. 0001), and each Riguent dose group
to the placebo dose group (p < 0.0015 for 100 mg, p < 0.0001 for 300 mg and %00 mg)

1 On February 1, 2007, we announced that we had made continued progress Im enrolling patients in our Phase
3 clinical trial of Riquent in that we had enrolled 202 patients in the study and 74 clinical trial siles were open to
enroll patients, including newly added sites in Europe and Mexico. In addition, we also announced that following
recent discussions with the United States Food and Drug Administration (the “F DA”) we have implemented several
enhancements to further strengthen the Phase 3 study, Wthh 'remains under a Spec:al Protoco] Assessment. These
enharicements include: :

| » Focus on higher doses — all new patients entering the study will be randomlzed in equal numbers to
| receive weekly doses of either 300 mg or 900 mg of Riquent or placebo with no further patients
i randomized to the 100 mg dose group.
|

., ® Increase sample size — the study sample size is increased from approxnmately 600 to approximately 730
patients, which is expected to increase the likelihood of achieving a stausncally significant outcome for
the individual dose groups when compared with placebo as well as overall.

|
e Broaden analysis of patient population — the primary endpoint will be assessed in all patients and will

f no longer be restricted to the high-affinity subpopulation. We belleve that the increased binding

| capability of higher doses will eliminate the need for an affinity measurement prior to treatment.

i

e Combine current studies — to increase efficiency and enhance the qua]itly of data, we also combined the
Phase 2 clinical pharmacology study with the Phase 3 study so that Riquent blood levels will be
collected in the same patient population as the definitive efficacy data.

Developments in 2006

i On January 11, 2006, we announced that we would initiate a multi-dose cllmcal study of Riquent in lupus
q p

pauents to evaluate the ablhty of higher doses of Riquent to further reduce antlbodles to dsDNA. This study is part
of our overall clinical development program of Riguent, which includes the ongomg \Phase 3 clinical benefit trial to

| 1
| - - |




evaluate the use of Riquent in preventative and acute settings. Subsequently, in February 2007, this Phase 2 clinical
pharmacology study was combined with the Phase 3 study.

On January 12, 2006, we announced that we had regained compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market
minimum bid price rule and that we were eligible to remain listed on the Nasdaq Global Market.

On March 135, 2006, we announced that Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D. was appointed to serve as our new
President and Chief Executive Officer following the resignation of Steven B. Engle on March 14, 2006. We also
announced that our board of directors had appointed Craig R. Smith, M.D)., a current independent director, to serve
as Chairman of the board. :

On June 22, 2006, we announced that our Marketing Authorization Application (the “MAA™) had been
accepted for review by the European Medicines Agency (the “EMEA”) for potential approval to market Riquent in
the European Union (the “EU”). The MAA was filed with the EMEA on March 31, 2006. The EMEA's review of
the MAA would follow its centralized marketing authorization procedure. Riquent has already received orphan
medicinal product designation in Europe, which will provide 10 years of market exclusivity from the date of the
EU’s authorization, if any.

On July 17, 2006, we announced that Michael J. B. Tansey, M.D.,, Ph.D. had joined the Company as Chief
Medical Officer on a part-time basis, whereby 65% of his time is devoted to his position with the Company.
Effective December 4, 2006, Dr. Tansey became a full-time employee, assuming the title of Executive Vice
President and Chief Medical Officer.

On August 9, 2006, we announced that we had reactivated enrollment in our Phase 3 trial of Riquent.
;
On September 27, 2006, we announced that we had made considerable progress on our Phase 3 trial of
Riquent in that we had added 27 new clinical trial sites able to screen and enroll patients for a total of 58 sites (22 in
the United States and 36 in Asia).

On October 12, 2006, we announced that we had requested the withdrawal of our MAA. In a preliminary
assessment of the MAA, the EMEA reviewers indicated that additional clinical data would be needed prior to
potential approval. Based on our review of the assessment, we believe that the ongoing clinical studies of Riquent
should provide the necessary data; however, the data will not be available within the timeframe that the EMEA
regulations allow for the review of the current Riquent application. Therefore, we decided to withdraw the current
application, and plan to refile the MAA after the completion of the ongoing clinical trials, if they are successful.

On November 6, 2006, we announced that we had made further progress in enrolling patients and opening
sites for our Phase 3 clinical trial of Riquent. As of November 2006, 82 patients had been enrolled in the study,
more than 150 additional patients were in screening for potential enrollment and we had activated 65 clinical trial
sites, including newly-added sites in Europe.

Business Strategy

Our near term objective is to focus on the development of Ricuent, our therapeutic drug candidate for the
treatment of lupus renal disease. Additionally, we will also seek to expand our drug development programs. Our
strategy includes the following key elements:

Complete clinical studies of Riquent to satisfy regulatory requirements. Based on the FDA’s approvable letter we
received in October 2004, we are required to complete an additional, randomized, double-blind study that
demonstrates the clinical benefit of Riquent prior to any potential approval in the United States. The letter indicated
that the successful completion of our engoing clinical trial, which we initiated in August 2004, wouild appear to
satisfy this requirement. Qur primary goal is to complete this study in order to satisfy the requirement set forth in the
FDA’s letter. We restarted enrollment in the United States for this study in the third quarter of 2006, after a final
review of the revised protocol by the FDA, and expanded the study to Europe and Asia ltater in 2006, We expect to
further expand the study globally in 2007 and target completing patient enrollment into the study around the end of
2007. .




|

Seek additional “funding, including through collaborative arrangements and 'through public - andfor private
Jinancings, to develop and commercialize product candidates. In order to contmue our development and potential
commercialization of Riquent and other product candidates, we will need s:gmﬁcant additional funding. Our choice
of financing alternatives may vary dependmg on a number of factors, 1nc]udmg the interest of other entities in
strategrc transactions with us, the market price of our securities and conditions in the financial markets. There can be
no guarantee that additional financing will be available on favorable terms, if at all, whether through collaborative
arrangements, the issuance of securities, or otherwise. l :
| .

Initiate commercialization piannmg activities. During 2007, we expect to develop a commercialization plan for the
United States market including marketing, sales and manufacturing activities. If quuent is ultimately approved in
the Umted States, as to which we can provide no assurance, we currently anticipate marketing Riquent ourselves
using a specialty pharmaceutical sales force which would target the rheumatology and nephrology specialists who
treat the majority of lupus patients with renal disease. If Riguent is approved out51de of the United States, as to
which we can provide no assurance, we currently expect to seek a marketing collaboration with one or more
partners. We also expect to enter into arrangements with contract manufacturmg companies to expand our own
production capacity in order to meet potential commercial demand.

i
Develop additional therapeutics for other life-threatening diseases. We seek to’ expand our drug development
pipeline with products that are commercially synergestic with Riquent by licensing or acquiring rights to compounds
and drug candidates that have been developed outside of the Company as well as b)'/ collaboratlng with third parties
to Further our efforts on drug candidates developed internally. P

In recent years, we have focused our product development efforts on our programs for lupus and anti-

inflammatory disorders. In the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we incurred expenses of
approximately $32.9 million, $22.6 million and $33.2 million, respectively, for product research and development
on these programs. :

|
quuent Program '

Lupus is a life-threatening, antibody-mediated disease in which disease-causing antibodies damage various
tissues. According to recent statistics compiled by the Lupus Foundation of America, epidemiological studies and
other sources, the number of lupus patients in the United States is estimated to be between 500,000 and 1,000,000,
and approximately 16,000 new cases are diagnosed each year. Approximately nine out of 10 lupus patients are
women, who usually develop the disease during their childbearing years. Lupus is tharacterized by a multitude of
symptoms that can include chronic kidney inflammation, which can lead to kidney failure, ‘serious episodes of
cardiac and central-nervous-system inflammation, as well as extreme fatigue, arthritis and rashes. Approximately
80% of all lupus patients progress to setious symptoms. Approximately 50% of Iupus patients will develop kidney
drsease which is a Ieadmg cause of death in lupus l

- Antibodies to dsDNA can be detected in up to 85% of lupus’ patients who are not receiving
immunosuppressive therapy, Antibodies to dsDNA are widely believed to cause kidney disease (nephritis), often
resulting in morbidity and mortality in lupus patients. Episodes of potentially life-threatening kidney inflammation
— called’ “renal flares” — often require ‘intensive care, treatment with high-dose corticosteroids and
immunosuppressive agents, and hospitalization. Lupus nephritis can lead to deterioration of kidney function and to
end-stage kidney disease, requiring long-term-renal dialysis or kidney transplantation to sustain a patient’s life. .

! Current treatments for lupus patients*who have a'renal flare often involve repeated administration of
corticosteroids, often at high levels, that can lead to serious side effects when used long-term Many patients with
renal flares are also treated with immunosuppressive therapy, including anti-cancer or transplantation drugs, which
can have a general suppressive effect on the immune system and may be carcinogenic. Treatment with
immunosuppressive therapies can leave patients vulnerable to serious infection, whrch is a significant cause of
sickness and death in these patients.

! Riquent was developed based on our patented Tolerance Technology® and is comprised of a lupus disease
specific epitope attached to a carrier platform. The family of molecules based 'pn this technology are called




Toleragens®. The design of Riquent is based on scientific evidence of the role of antibodies to dsDNA in lupus. We
have designed Riquent to suppress the production of antibodies to dsDNA in lupus patients without suppressing the
normal function of the immune system. Published studies of lupus patients indicate that a rise in the level of
antibodies to- dsDNA may be predictive of renal flares in lupus patients with renal involvement, and that reducing
antibodies to dsDNA by. treating with corticosteroids can prevent relapse. Furthermore, based on published data
from our own Phase 2/3 and Phase 3 trials, a reduction in the levels of antibodies to dsDNA significantly correlated
with a reduced risk of renal flare and improved health-related quality of life. Based on these same published data, a
rise in antibodies to dsDNA significantly correlated with an increased risk of renal flare and no change or
deterioration in health-related quality of life. In a mouse model of lupus nephritis that generates elevated levels of
antibodies to dsDNA, administration of Riquent reduced the produciion of antibodies to dsDNA, reduced the
number of antibody-forming cells, reduced kidney disease and extended the life of the animals. We believe that our
own and other studies provide evidence that reducing levels of antibodies to dsDNA may provide an effective
therapy for lupus nephritis.

Riquent Clinical Trial History
Phase 1 trial

Based on our pre-clinical findings, we filed an Investigational New Drug application for Riquent with the
FDA in August 1994. In a double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase 1 clinical trial conducted in December 1994,
healthy volunteers received Riquent and displayed no drug- related adverse effects. Upon completion of our Phase 1
trial, we began four Phase 2 clinical trials, .

Phase 2 trials . . . . .
Our Phase 2 clinical trials included a single-dose trial, a repeat dose-escalating trial and two dose-ranging
trials.

In 1994, we initiated a single-dose clinical trial to evaluate the safety of a single, 100 mg intravenous dose
of Riquent in four female lupus patients. Riquent was well tolerated by all four patients, with no drug-related
adverse clinical symptoms and no cllmcally significant complement level changes.

In 1995, we initiated-a repeat dose-escalating clinical trial in which two female Iupus patients each received
doses of 10, 10, 50, 50, 100 and 100 mg of Riquent at two-week intervals. After the 10-week dosing regimen was
completed, the patients were monitored for six -weeks. Riquent was well tolerated by both patients. Six weeks after
the last dose, the antibodies to dsDNA levels in both patients remained suppressed below baseline levels.

Also in 1995, we conducted a double-blind, placebo-controlled dose-ranging trial, in which 58 lupus
patients with mild lupus symptoms were treated for a four-month period with Riquent or placebo, and then were
monitored for two months. Patients in the weekly treatment groups showed a dose-response correlation between
increasing doses of Riquent and reductions of levels of antibodies to dsDNA. The drug was well tolerated with no
clinically significant dose-related adverse reactions observed. '

In 1999, we completed a second double-blind, placebo-controlled dose-ranging trial, in which 74 lupus
patients received weekly injections of 10, 50 or 100 mg of Riquent or placebo for a 12-week period. In patients
treated weekly with placebo, 10 mg or 50 mg of Riguent, antibodies to dsDNA increased by 100%, 53% and 10%,
respectively, while in patients treated weekly with 100 mg of Riquent, antibodies to dsDNA decreased by 43%, a
statistically significant difference from placebo. Seven Riquent-treated patients had serious adverse events, but none
were considered related to Riguent treatment. \

Phase 2/3 trial

In December 1996, we initiated a double-blind, placebo-controlled, multi-center Phase 2/3 clinical trial of
Riquent in which lupus patients with a history of lupus nephritis received placebo or weekly doses of 100 mg of
Riquent for the first 16 weeks of the trial. The trial design was then changed whereby, patients received alternating
eight week drug holidays followed by 12 weeks of weekly treatments with 50mg of Riguent or placebo. Patients
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were in the trial for up to 18 months. More than 200 patients at more than 50 sites in North America and Europe
enrolled in the trial. This trial was conducted with Abbott Laboratories as part of.our joint development agreement.

In May 1999, an interim analysis of the Phase 2/3 trial indicated that the trial was unlikely to reach
statistical significance for the primary endpoint, time to renal flare, and the trial was stopped. In September 1999,
our joint development agreement for Riquent with Abbott Laboratories was terminated. \

' In November 1999, we announced results from retrospective analyses of the data from the Phase 2/3
clinical trial which showed that a certain group of patients treated with Riquent with “high affinity™ antibodies had
- fewer renal flares and longer time to treatment with high-dose corticosteroids and/or cyclophosphamide (*HDCC™).
These results were based on an analysis of the trial using a blood test that we developed and that appears to predict
which patients will respond to treatment with Riquent at the doses being administered at that time. . '

+ The “high-affinity” patients treated’ with Riquent experienced significantly longer time to renal flare (p =
0.007), the primary endpoint of the trial, fewer.renal flares (p = 0.008), longer time to treatments with HDCC (p =
0.0003) and fewer exposures to HDCC (p < 0.001) when compared to the placebo-treated group. Also in the Phase
2/3 trial, mean levels of circulating antibodies to dsDNA in patients treated with Riquent were reduced by a
statistically significant amount relative to placebo during drug treatment (p < 0.0001). Further, in a group of high-
affinity patients with impaired renal function (defined as serum creatinine > 1.5 mg/dL), there were six renal flares
in 11 patients treated with placebo and no renal flares in 11 patients treated with Riquent (p =0.012).

P

Previous Phase 3 trial

v v

|
Based on the observations from our Phase 2/3 trial and following dlscussmns with the FDA, we 1mtlated a
Phase 3 clinical trial in September 2000 to further evaluate the safety and efﬁcacy of Riquent in the treatment of
lupus renal disease. The double-blind, placebo-controlled study was conducted at 91 sites in North America and
Europe and was designed to evaluate the potential of Riquent to delay and reduce the number of rénal flares and to
delay and reduce the need for treatment with HDCC and/or other immunosuppressive drugs in high-affinity patients.

Patients in the trial were treated weekly with either 100 mg of Riquent or placebo for a period of up to 22 months.

. t .

In February 2003, we announced that Riquent appeared to be well tolerated with no apparent differences in
the overall incidence of serious adverse events or adverse events between quuent -treated and- placebo-treated
patlems The trial data indicated that treatment with Riquent did not increase length of time to renal flare, the
pnmary endpoint, or time to treatment with HDCC, the secondary endpomt in 4 statistically significant manner
when compared with placebo through the end of the study. . !

In the trial, there were fewer renal flares, fewer treatments with HDCC and fewer Major SLE flares in
Riquent-treated patients compared with placebo-treated patients, but the differences were not statistically significant.
There was a 25% reduction in the incidence of renal flare and a 21% reduction in the incidence of Major SLE flare.
The estimated median time to renal flare was 123 mioriths in the Riquent-treated group and 89 months in the

' placebo treated group. There was a statistically significant reduction in antibodies to dsDNA in the Riquent-treated
group compared with the placebo-treated group (p < 0.0001). In patients with impaired renal function at baseline,
Riquent-treated patients had fewer renal flares, treatments with HDCC and Major SLE flares compared with patients
on plaéebo, but the sample size of this subgroup was small and the differences were not statistically signiﬁcam.

In March 2003, we announced results from several retrospective analyses of trial data indicating that renal
flares occurred approximately one-fifth as often in patients with Sustained reductions in antibodies to dsDNA
compared with patients with unchanged or incteasing antibodies (Phase 3: p < 0. 0001; Phase 2/3: p = 0.0004).
Pauents with sustained reductions also reported improved or maintained health-related quahty of life compared with
panents without sustained reductions in antibodies to dsDNA, regardless of treatment group. In November 2003, we
announced analyses using Cox’s Proportionai Hazards Regressmn Model demonstratmg that a 50% reduction in
antibodies to dsDNA from baseline was associated with a 52% lower risk of renal flare in the Phase 2/3 trial (p =
0. 0007) and a 53% !ower nsk in the Phase 3 trial (p <0. 000]) : "

" Further, in March 2004, we announced statistically significant but retrospe;ctive results from the Phase 3
and Phase 2/3 trials showing that, after one year of treatment, the number of lupus patients with a reduction in




proteinuria of at least 50% from baseline was greater in the Riquent-treated group than in the placebo-treated group.
Proteinuria, or protein in the urine, results from ongoing kidney inflammation. The reduction of proteinuria is one of
the goals for the treatment of lupus patients with renal disease. Monitoring the level of a patient’s proteinuria is a
routine and important way to help determine the severity and progression of renal disease.

In 2004, we filed a New Drug Application (*“NDA”) for Riquent with the FDA. Qur NDA submission was
prepared on our understanding that the FDA could potentially approve Riquent on the basis of our clinical trial
results or under the accelerated approval regulation known as Subpart H. Under Subpart H, drugs in development
for serious, life-threatening diseases with an unmet medical need can be approved on an accelerated basis if the FDA
determines that the effect of the drug on a surrogate endpoint is reasonably likely to predict clinical benefit and that .
a post-marketing clinical trial can be successfully completed following drug approval which confirms the clinical
benefit. As previously described, in our Phase 3 and Phase 2/3 trials, patients treated with Riquent had significantly
reduced levels of antibodies to dsDNA compared with patients treated with placebo. In October 2004, we received a
letter from the FDA indicating that Riquent is approvable, but that an additional, randomized, double-blind study
demonstrating the clinical benefit of Riquent would need to be completed prior to approval. The FDA letter
indicated that the successful completion of the clinical trial that we initiated in August 2004 would appear to satisfy
this requirement. : -

Current Phase 3 trial

A placebo controlled Phase 3 clinical benefit trial, designed to meet the FDA’s requirement that we conduct
an additional randomized, double-blind study, was initiated in August 2004 under a Special Protocol Assessment
(“SPA™). The SPA process is a formal procedure that results in a binding written agreement between a company and
the FDA concerning the design of a clinical trial or other study. While we delayed additional patient enrollment in
March 2005 to conserve cash, in the third quarter of 2006 we reinitiated enrollment in the trial and, on February 1,
2007, announced that 202 patients of the projected 730 patients had been enrolled in the study and 74 clinical trial
sites were open to enroll patients in the United States, Europe, Asia and Mexico. We expect to activate more than
100 clinical trial sites and complete patient enrollment into the study around the-end of 2007.,

In the current Phase 3 clinical benefit trial compared to the previous Phase 3 study, virtually all patients are
being treated with one of two higher doses of Riquent or placebo, the number of patients to be studied was more
than doubted, the primary endpoint was refined, the use of immunosuppressive agents was further restricted, and the
treatment duration was changed to 12 months. As in the previous Phase 3 study, patients in the study all have a
history of lupus renal disease. The primary endpoint, time to renal flare, was refined in order to eliminate the
hematuria component, which appears to be less specific for lupus renal disease. These changes were all based on
results of the previous Phase 2/3 and Phase 3 trials of Riquent.

On February 1, 2007, following further discussions with the FDA, we announced that all new patients
entering the study wilt be randomized in equal numbers to receive weekly doses of either 300 mg or 900 mg of
Riquent or placebo, with no further patients randomized to the 100 mg dose group. The approximately 30 patients
currently being treated with 100 mg will continue at that dose through the completion of the study. The FDA
confirmed that the primary endpoint required to establish efficacy is the time to renal flare for the combined
population of patients treated with weekly Riquent doses of 300 mg and 900 mg, compared with placebo.

The study’s sample size has been increased to approximately 730 patients which is expected to increase the
likelihood of achieving a statistically significant outcome for the individual dose groups when compared with
placebo as well as overall. The number of patients to be enrolled is more than twice the approximately 300 patients
in the previous Phase 3 study. The trial is designed to be successful based on the results from the last Phase 3 study,
where all drug-treated patients received a dose of 100 mg per week of Riquent. In determining how many patients
should be enrolled in the current Phase 3 clinical benefir trial, no additional clinical benefit from treatment with the
higher doses was assumed.

In other changes to the study design, the study entry' criteria further restricts the use of immunosuppressive
agents which, in the previous Phase 3 study, may have reduced the renal flare rate. Also, the current design was
changed to a fixed 12-month patient evaluation period. In the previous Phase 3 trial, patients were treated for up to -
22 months.




Also, the primary endpoint will be assessed in all patients and will no longer be restricted to the high-
affinity subpopulation. We believe that the increased binding capability of higher doses will eliminate the need for
an affinity measurement prior to treatment.

i
l_ To increase ef‘ﬁcrency and enhance the quality of data, we also combmed the Phase 2 clinical
pharmacology study with- the Phase 3 study so that Riquent blood levels will be collected in the same pattent
populatton as the definitive efficacy data. These changes were all incorporated irito the approved SPA.

-I We also reached an agreement with the FDA to assess the dose response of the treatment with Riguent on
antibodies to dsDNA by conducting an analysis to evaluate the effect of higher oses on the reduction of these
ant1bold1es In March 2007, we performed an interim antibody analysis of our longomg double-blind, placebo-
controlled randomized Phase 3 trial of Riquent The analyses of interim antibody data indicate that patients treated
with 900 mg or 300 mg per week doses of Riquent had greater reductions in anttbod1es to dsDNA than patients
treated with 100 mg per week or placebo: The results showed a significant dose response when comparing all
quuent -treated patients to placebo-treated patients (p < 0.0001), and each R1quent dose group to the placebo dose
group (p < 0.0015 for 100 mg, p <0.0001 for 300 mg and 900 mg)

i The analyses assessed the impact of treatment with Riquent on reducing antibodies to dsDNA in 101
patlents by measuring the percent of antibody reduction from baseline compared with placebo following weekly
treatment with 100 mg, 300 mg or 900 mg of Riquent or placebo. All demographrcs and baseline characteristics
were comparable across dosing groups and there were 16 to 30 patients per treatment group.

i Following eight . weeks of treatment, the median percent reduction in antibodies to dsDNA for Riquent-
treated patients compared with placebo-treated patients was 36% (100 mg), 48%|(3OO mg), and 66% (900 mg).
Antlbody reduction for each dose group was significantly better than placebo. Approximately three times as many
pattents treated with 900 mg of Riquent (38%) had at least a 50% or greater antibody reduction at week 8 compared
with patlents treated with 100 mg (13%). Patients reached their maximum reduction after four weeks of treatment at
which time separation between doses was also seen.

| ) .
As indicated in our earlier studies, maintaining antibody reductions over 'time in individual patients was
associated with a significantly reduced renal fiare rate. The data from the interim annbody analysis indicate that the
htgher the Riquent dose, the ‘greater the consistency of response and the greater the magnitude of this respense.
While' jmore than twice as many 900 mg-treated patients (58%) as 100 mg-treated patlents {25%) had a consistent

20% reduction, six times as many 900 mg-treated patients (39%) had a consistent{40% reduction, compared with
100 m'g treated patients (6%). Twice as many patients on 900 mg as 300 mg had a clonsistent 50% reduction, but no
pattents on 100 mg or placebo achieved this level of consistent reduction.. A consrstent reduction is defined as a
patient whose percent antibody reductton exceeded a specified level at weeks 4, 6 anff 8.

To date, Riquent has been well tolerated in the ongoing Phase 3 study. Tihe adverse event profile for all
pattents in the study, including those treated with the 300 mg and 900 mg doses, does not appear to differ from that
seen m previous studies where 100 mg of Riquent was the treatment dose.

I

. ! We also plan to conduct an interim analysis for efficacy at a’point in time when approximately two-thirds
of the projected number of renal flares have been observed. The level of statistical significance for the primary
endpoint required for approval takes this interim analysis into account :

' To assess the tolerability of higher doses, a safety stucly in healthy volunteers was completed in 2005.
Subjects received a single dose of quuent at 600 mg, 1200 mg, or 2400 mg. Riquent appeared to be well tolerated
in these subjects. _ i ' -
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Riguent Regulatory Status

Orphan drug designation for Rigquent

In September 2000, the FDA granted us orphan drug designation for Riquent for the treatment of lupus
nephritis. The Orphan Drug Act potentially enables us to obtain research funding, tax credits for certain research
expenses and a waiver of the application user fees. In addition, the Orphan Drug Act allows for seven years of
exclusive marketing rights to a specific drug for a specific orphan indication. Exclusivity is conferred upon receipt
of marketing approval from the FDA to the first sponsor who obtains such approval for a designated drug. The
marketing exclusivity prevents' FDA approval during the seven-year period of the “same” drug, as defined in the
FDA regulations, from another company for the same orphan indication. Whether we will be able to take advantage
of some of the benefits afforded by the orphan drug designation will ultimately be determined by the FDA only after
further review of our NDA.

In November 2001, the European Commission granted us orphan medicinal product designation in the
European Union for Riquent for treatment of lupus nephritis. Orphan designation in Europe provides for 10 years of
marketing exclusivity in the European Union and enables us to receive significant fee reductions for scientific
advice from the Committee for Orphan Medicinal Products, marketing authorization and inspections.

FDA fast track designation for Riquent

On May 30, 2005, the FDA granted fast track designation for Riquent for the treatment of lupus renal
disease. The FDA’s fast track program is designed to facilitate the development and to expedite the review of new
drugs that are intended to treat serious or Ilfe-threatenmg conditions and that demonstrate the potential to address an
unmet medical need, ‘ T

Inflammatory and Autoimmune Programs

SSAO Inflammation Program

Because substantially all of our resources are currently being devoted to the development of Riquent,
further development of the SSAQO program depends on the future availability of additional capital.

On December 2, 2003, we announced the discovery of novel, orally-active small molecules for the
treatment of autoimmune diseases and acute and chronic inflammatory disorders. Qur scientists have generated
highly selective inhibitors of SSAO, an enzyme that has been implicated in inflammatory responses in many tissues
and organs. 8SAQ, also known as vascular adhesion protein-1 or VAP-1, was recently discovered to be a dual-
function molecule with enzymatic and adhesion activities. SSAQ contributes to the adhesion of white blood cells to
endothelial cells and is amplified in inflamed blood vessels. The enzyme also contributes to the production of
molecules that exacerbate inflammation. Increases in the levels of plasma or membrane-associated SSAQ have been
reported for many inflammation-associated diseases including rheumatoid arthritis, mflammatory bowel disease,
diabetes, atherosclerosis and chronic heart failure.

Preclinical studies in animal models of multiple sclerosis, rheumatoid arthritis, inflammatory bowel
disease, stroke, systemic inflammation and acute inflammation have shown that treatment with our lead compound
inhibitors both maintained function and reduced disease activity compared with placebo treatment. The impact of
these lead compounds on animal models of multiple sclerosis and rheumatoid arthritis was similar to that of
methotrexate, a widely used anti-inflammatory agent.

Data published by our scientists in 2005 in two peer-reviewed articles show that these novel, orally-active
small molecule inhibitors of SSAO/VAP-1 may provide clinical benefit for the treatment of stroke, ulcerative colitis,
and other autoimmune diseases and inflammatory disorders.

Antibody-Mediated Thrombosis Program

We have used our Tolerance Technology to develop a drug candidate, LJP 1082, to treat antibody-mediated
thrombosis. Because substantially all of our resources are currently being devoted to the development of Riquent
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we have suspended development of LIP 1082, Whether we will again devote any resources to this program depends
on a number of factors, including the progress of our Riquent development program and the future availability of
addmonal capital. i

Collaborative Arrangements
N l

? In circumstances where we believe that a collaborative agreement is necessary or strategically beneficial to

us, we intend to pursue collaborative arrangements with other pharmaceutical compames to assist in our research
programs and the clinical development and commercialization of our drug candidates and to access their research,
drug development manufacturing, marketing and financial resources. There can be | no assurance that we will be able
to negotiate arrangements with any collaborative partner on acceptable terms, or at all. If a collaborative relationship
is established, there can be no assurance that the collaborative partner will continue to fund any particular program
or that it will not pursue alternative technologies or develop alternative drug candrdates either individually or in
collaboranon with others, including our competitors, as a means for developing treatments for the diseases we have
targeted Furthermore, competing products, either developed by a collaborative partner or to which a collaborative
partner has rights, may result in the withdrawal of support by the collaborative partner with respect to all or a portion
of our technology ’

!
; !
Failure to establish or maintain collaborative arrangements will require uls to fund our own research and
development activities, resulting in significant expenditure of our own capital, and will require us to develop our
own marketmg capabilities for any. drug candidate that may receive regulatory approval. The failure of any
collaborattve partner to continue funding any particular program, or to commercialize successfully any product,
could Idelay or halt the development or commercialization of any products involved in such program., As a result,-the
failure to establish or maintain collaborative arrangements could hurt our business, f' nancial condition and results of
operations. ,

+

Manulfacturing
. 1 M

| We currently operate a production facility that we belteve provides sufﬁctent capacity to meet our
anticipated requirements for research, clinical trial and any initial commercial launch of Riquent. If Riquent is
approved, we expect to have the capacity to manufacture approximately 100 kg of Riquent per year. If Riquent is
approved, and if future demand for Riquent exceeds our current capacity, we expect to increase our manufacturing
capacity by improving our manufacturing processes, making capital investments in our current facilities and
engaging third party contract manufacturers. !

1+ We are required to comply with the FDA’s and other regulatory agencies’ current Good Manufacturing

Practices (“cGMPs”) when we manufacture our drug candidates for clinical trials. We will also be required to

comply with the ¢GMPs if Riquent, or our other drug candidates, are manufactureii for commercial purposes. We

have limited manufacturing experience and we can provide no assurance that we will be able to successfully

transition to commercial production. ;
l :

' l In order to meet the demand for any of our drugs that may be approved or to attempt to improve our
manufacturtng efficiency, we may enter into arrangements with third party contract,manufacrurers If we choose to
contract for manufacturing services, the FDA and comparable foreign regulators will have to approve the contract
manufacturers prior to our use, and these contractors would be required to comply with strictly enforced
manufacturmg standards. Currently, we also enter into agreements with contractors{to prepare our drug candidates
for use by patients. If we encounter delays or difficulties in establishing or maintaining relationships with
contractors to produce, package or distribute finished products, clinical trials, market introduction and subsequent
sales. of such products would be adversely affected. Our dependence on others for production, packaging or
drstrtbutlon of our products may adversely affect our profit margins and our abrltty to develop and deliver our
products on a timely and competitive basis. *

|-
' There are currently a limited number of suppliers that produce the raw matel'tals that are necessary to make
thuent In order to manufacture Riquent in sufficient quantities for our| clinical trials and possible
commeércialization, our suppliers will be required to provide us with an adequate supply of chemicals and reagents.




If we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of chemicals or reagents, our ability to develop and deliver products
on a timely and competitive basis will be negatively affected.

Marketing and Sales

If we obtain FDA approval in the United States, we currently anticipate that we would market Riquent
ourselves using a specialty pharmaceutical sales force of 40 to 50 sales representatives who would initially target the
rheumatology and nephrology specialists who treat the majority of lupus patients with renal disease. We estimate
that the majority of these patients are treated at approximately 1,000 clinical centers. If we obtain approval outside
of the United States, we currently expect to seek a marketing collaboration with a partner.

We currently have no arrangements with others for the marketing of any of our drug candidates. There can
be no assurance that we will be able to enter into any marketing agreements on favorable terms, if at all, or that any
such agreements that we may enter into will result in payments to us. Under any co-promotion or other marketing
and sales arrangements that we may enter into with other companies, any revenues that we may receive will be
dependent on the efforts of others and there can be no assurance that such efforts will be successful.

To the extent that we choose to attempt to develop our own marketing and sales capability (whether
domestic or international), we will compete with other companies that have experienced and well-funded marketing
and sales operations. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that we, or any collaborative partner, will be able to
establish sales and distribution capabilities without undue delays or expenditures, or gain market acceptance for any
of our drug candidates. The uitimate size of the markets for our products is uncertain and difficult to estimate.
Moreover, we may not earn as much income as we hope due to possible changes in healthcare re1mbursement
policies by governments and other third party payers.

Patents and Proprietary Technologies

We file patent applications in the United States and in foreign countries for the protection of our proprietary

" technologies and drug candidates as we deem appropriate. We currently own 111 issued patents and have 65

pending patent applications in the United States and in foreign countries covering various technologies and drug
candidates, including our lupus drug candidates {Toleragens), our SSAQ inhibitor technology (currently there are no
issued patents to our SSAO inhibitor technology) our antibody-mediated thrombosis drug candidates (Toleragens),
our Tolerance Technology, and our carrier platform and linkage technologies for our Toleragens Our issued patents
include:

e Lupus Toleragens -- six issued United States patents, two issued Australian patents, one granted Portuguese
patent, one granted Norwegian patent, one granted European patent (which has been unbundled as 13
European national patents), two granted Canadian patents, two granted Finnish patents, one granted irish
patent, and one granted Japanese patent (expiring between 2010 and 2020); and

¢ Tolerance Technology — three issued United States patents, one issued Australian patent, one granted
European patent (which has been unbundled as 15 European national patents), one granted Japanese patent,
two granted Canadian patents, one granted South Korean patent and one granted Irish patent (explrlng
between 2011 and 20]2)

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries are subject to rapid technological change. Competition
from domestic and foreign biotechnology companies, large pharmaceutical companies and other institutions is
intense and expected to increase. A number of companies are pursuing the development of pharmaceuticals in our
targeted areas. These include companies that are conducting clinical trials and pre-clinical studies for the treatment
of lupus.

In addition, there are a number of academic institutions, both public and private, engaged in activities
relating to the research and development of therapeutics for autoimmune, inflammatory and other diseases. Most of
these companies and institutions have substantially greater facilities, resources, research and development
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capablhtles regulatory comphance expertise, and manufacturing and marketing capab111t|es than we do. In addition,
othe'r technologies may in the future be the basis of competitive products. There can be no assurance that our
competitors will not develop or obtain regutatory approval for products more rapldly than we can, or develop and
market technologies and products that are more effective than those we are developmg or that would render our
technology and proposed products obsolete or noncompetitive.

l With respect to the development of Riquent, we beheve that our ability to compete successfully will depend
on our ability to aftract and retain experienced scientists, develop patented or propnetary technologies and products,
obta1m regulatory approvals, effectively manufacture and market products either alone or through third parties, and
secure additional capital resources to fund anticipated net losses for at least the next several years. If Riquent is
commerczahzed we expect that competition among marketed products will be based in large part on product safety,
efﬁcacy, reliability, avallabrhty, price and patent position. . . l

[
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Government Regulation

United States : . . C

Our research and development activities and the future manufacturing and marketing of any products we
deve]op are subject to significant regulation by numerous government authorrtles in the United States and other
countrles In the United States, the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and the! Public Health Service Act govern
the testmg, manufacture, safety, efficacy, labeling, storage, record keeping, approval, advertising and promotion,
and dlstnbutlon of our drug candidates and any products we may develop. In addmon to FDA regulations, we are
SUbJECt to other federal, state and local regulations, such as the Occupatlonal Safety and Health Act and the
Environmental Protection Act, as well as regulations governing the handling, use and disposal of radioactive and
othelr hazardous materials used in our research activities. Product development and approval within this regulatory
framework takes a number of years and involves the expenditure of substantial resources. In addition, this regulatory
framework is subject to changes that may adversely affect approval, delay an! apphcatlon or require additional
expendltures l

l The steps requrred before a pharmaceuttcal compound may be marketed] in the United States 1nclude pre-
clinical laboratory and animal testing; submission to the FDA of an Investigational New Drug apphcatlon which
must become effective before clinical trials may commence; conducting adequate and well-controlled clinical trials
to estabhsh the safety and efficacy of the drug; submission to the FDA of an NDA or Biologic License Application
(“BLA") for biologics;. satisfactory completion of an FDA preapproval 1nspect1orl of the manufacturing facilities to
assess compliance with cGMPs; and FDA approval of the NDA or BLA prior to any commercial sale or shipment of
the drug In addition to obtaining FDA approval for each product, each drug- mahufacturmg estabhshment must be
reglstered with the FDA and be operated in conformity with cGMPs. Drug product manufacturing facilities located
in California also must be licensed by the State of California in comphance with separate regulatory requrrements

l Pre-clinical testing includes laboratory evaluation of product chemrstry and ammal studies to assess the
safety and efficacy of the product and its formulation. The results of pre-clinical testing are submitted to the FDA as
part; of an I[nvestigational New Drug Application and, unless the FDA objects the Investigational New Drug
Apphcatton becomes effective 30 days following its receipt by the FDA. '

: Clinical trials involve administration of the drug to healthy volunteers and to patients diagnosed with the
condmon for which the drug is being tested under the supervrsron of a qualified chmcal mvestlgator Clinical trials
are c0nducted in accordance, with protocols that detail the objectives of the study, the parameters to be used to
momtor safety, and the efficacy criteria to be evaluated. Each protocol is submmed to the FDA as part of the
Investlgattonal New Drug application. Each clinical trial is conducted underl the auspices of an independent
Institutional Review Board (“IRB”) in the United States or Ethics Committee (“EC”) outside the United States for
eacl% trial site. The IRB or EC consrders among other matters ethical factors and the safety of human subjects

Clinical trials are typlcally conducted in three sequential phases, but the phases may overlap or be repeated.
In Plhase 1, the phase in which the drug is initially introduced into healthy human subjects or patients, the drug is
tested for adverse effects, dosage tolerance, metabolism, distribution, excretion and clinical pharmacology ‘Phase 2
trials involve the testing of a limited patient population in order to characterize the actions of the drug in targeted
indications, to determine drug tolerance and optimal dosage, and to identify possrb]e adverse side effects and safety

.




risks. When a'compound appears to be effective and to have an acceptable safety profile in Phase 2 clinical trials,
Phase 3 clinical trials are undertaken to further evaluate and confirm clinical efficacy and safety within an expanded
patient population at multiple clinical trial sites. The FDA reviews the clinical plans and monitors the results of the
trials and may discontinue the trials at any time if significant safety issues arise. Similarly, an IRB may suspend or
terminate a trial at a study site which is not being conducted in accordance with the IRB’s requirements or which has
been associated with unexpected serious harm to subjects. S

The results of pre-clinical testing and clinical trials are submitted to the FDA in the form of an NDA or
BLA for marketing approval. The submission of an NDA or BLA also is subject to the payment of user fees, but a
waiver of the fees may be obtamed under specified circumstances. The testing and approval process is likely to
require substantial time and effort and there can be no assurance that any approval will be granted on a timely basis,
if at all, or that conditions of any approval, such as warnings, contraindications, or scope of indications will not
materially impact the potential market acceptance and profitability of the drug product. Data obtained from clinical
trials are not always conclusive and the FDA may interpret data differently than we interpret the same data. The
FDA may refer the application to an advisory committee for review, evaluation and recommendation as to whether
the application should be approved and under what conditions. The FDA is not bound by the recommendations of
an advisory committee, but it generally follows such recommendations. The approval process is affected by a
number of factors, including the severity of the disease, the availability of altematwe treatments and the risks and
benefits of the product demonstrated in cllmcal tnals

Additional pre-clinical testing or chmcal trials may be requested during the FDA review pertod and may
delay any marketing approval: After FDA approval for the initial indications, further clinical trials may benecessary
to gain approval for the use of the product for additional indications. In addition, after approval, some types of
changes to the approved product, such as manufacturing changes, are subject to further EDA review and approval.
The FDA mandates that adverse effects be reported to the FDA and may also require post-marketing testing to
monitor for adverse effects, which can involve significant expense. Adverse effects observed during the commercial
use of a drug product or which arise in the course of post-marketing testing can result in the need for labeling
revisions, including additional warnings and contraindications, and, if the ﬁndmgs signifi cantly alter the risk/benefit
assessment, the potential withdrawal of the drug from the market. Y o

Among the conditions for FDA approval is the requirement that the prospective manufacturer’s quality
control and manufacturing procedures conform to the FDA’s cGMP requirements. Domestic manufacturing facilities
are subject to biannual FDA inspections and foreign manufacturing facilities-are subject to periodic inspections by
the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities. If the FDA finds that a company is not operating in compliance with
¢GMPs, the continued availability of the product can be interrupted until compliance is achieved and, if the
deficiencies are not corrected within a reasonable time frame, the drug could be withdrawn from the market. In
addition, the FDA strictly regulates labeling, 'advertising and promotion -of drugs. - Failure to conform to
requirements relating to licensing, manufacturing, and promoting drug products can result in informal or formal
sanctions, including warning letters, injunctions, seizures, civil and criminal penaltles adverse pubhcﬂy and
withdrawal of approval.

Foreign

We are also subject to numerous and varying foreign regulatory requ1rements govemmg the deSIgn and
conduct of clinical trials and marketmg approval for pharmaceutical products to be marketed outside of the United
States. The approval process varies among countries and regions and can invelve additional testing, and the tlme
required to obtain approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. R .

The steps to obtam approval to market Riquent in the European Union include: pré-clinicat laboratory and
animal testing; conductmg adequate ‘and well controlled clinical trials to establish safety and efﬁcacy, submission of
an MAA; and the issuance of a preduct marketing license by the European Commission prior to any commercial
sale or shlpment of drug. In addition to obtaining a product’ marketing license for each product, each drug
manufacturmg establishment must be registered with the EMEA, must operate in conformity with European good
manufacturmg practlce and must pass inspections by the European health authorities.
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~ Upon receiving the MAA, the Committee for Human Medicinal Products {the “CHMP"), a division of the
EMEA, will review the MAA and may respond with a list of questions or objections. The answers to the questions
posed by the CHMP may require additional tests to be conducted. Responses to the list of questions or objections
must be provided to and deemed sufficient by the CHMP within a defined timeframe. Ultimately, a representative
from each of the European Member States will vote whether to approve the MAA. -

Foreign regulatbry approval processes include all of the risks associated with obtaining FDA approval, and
approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by the health authorities of any other country. |

Employees

As of March 2, 2007, we employed 84 full-time employees (including elght people who have a Ph.D. and
two people who have an M.D., one of which also has a Ph.D.), 68 of whom are involved full-time in clinical,
development and manufacturmg activities. All members of our senior management team have had prior experience
with pharmaceutical, biotechnology or medical product companies. We believe that we have been successful in
attracting skilled and experienced personnel, but competition for personnel is intense and there can be no assurance
that we will be able to attract and retain the individuals needed. None of our employees are covered by collective
bargammg agreements and management con51ders relations wnth our employees to be good.

Avmlable Information .

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge through our website at
www.ljpc.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish the reports with or to the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

4

Item 1A. Risk Factors

1. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRY
IN WHICH WE OPERATE.

We may not have sufficient financial resources to complete the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial of Riquent.

We will need to successfully complete the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit study of Riquent prior to any
FDA or any foreign regulatory approvals. We expect that the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial will involve
approximately 730 patients and take two to three years to complete. We expect that the actual costs of completing
the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial of Riquent will exceed our current cash resources. If we expend all of the
funds that we have raised and do not receive funding from a collaborative agreement with a corporate partner or
obtain other financing, we would not have the financial resources to complete the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit
trial or to continue the development of Riquent, and it would be difficult or impossible for us to continue to operate.

In order to complete our ongoing clinical trial of Riguent, we will need to enroll a sufficient number of patients
who meet the trial criteria. If we are unable to successfully complete the trial, our business will be adversely
affected and it may be difficult or impossible for us to continue o operate.

: We expect that the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial of Riquent will involve approximately 730
patients, which is significantly more than were involved in our previous Phase 3 trial. In order to complete this trial,
we will need to locate and enroll a sufficient number of patients who meet the criteria for the trial. We may have
difficulty enrolling patients because, among other matters, there are specific limitations on the medications that a
patient may be taking upon entry into the trial. If we are unable to timely enroll a sufficient number of patients, we
will not be able to successfully complete the ongoing trial. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible for us to
continue to operate.
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Results from our clinical trials may not be sufficient to obtain regulaiory approvals to market Riquent or our
other drug candidates in the United States or other countries on a timely basis, if at all.

Our drug candidates are subject to extensive government regulations related to development, clinical trials,
manufacturing and commercialization. In order to sell any product that is under development, we must first receive
regulatory approval. To obtain regulatory approval, we must conduct clinical trials and toxicology studies that
demonstrate that our drug candidates are safe and effective. The process of obtaining FDA and foreign 'regulatory
approvals is costly, time consuming, uncertain and subject to unanticipated delays.

The FDA and foreign regulatory authorities have substantial discretion in the approval process and may not
agree that we have demonstrated that Riquent is safe and effective. If Riquent is ultimately not found to be safe and
effective, we would be unable to obtain regulatory approval to manufacture, market and sell Riquent. Although we
have received an approvable letter from the FDA, the analysis of the data from our earlier Phase 3 trial of Riquent
showed that the trial did not reach statistical significance with respect to its primary endpoint, time to renal flare, or
with respect to its secondary endpoint, time to treatment with high-dose corticosteroids or cyclophosphamide. In a
preliminary assessment of the MAA, the EMEA reviewers indicated that additional clinical data would be needed
prior to potential approval. Based on our review. of the EMEA assessment, we believe that the ongoing clinical
studies of Riquent should provide the necessary data; however, the data will not be available within the timeframe
that the EMEA regulations allow for review of the current Riquent application. Therefore, we decided to withdraw
the current application, and plan to refile the MAA after the compietion of the ongoing clinical trials if they are
successful. We can provide no assurances that the FDA -or foreign regulatory authorities will ultimately approve
Riquent or, if approved, what the indication for Riquent will be,

As currently designed, our ongoing Phase 3 trial contains multiple dosing levels. Even if the Phase 3
clinical trial is successful, the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities may require additional studies to define dosing
recommendations before we can obtain approval to market Riquent.

Because substantially ail of our resources are currently being devoted to Riquent, our inability to obtain
any regulatory approval of Riguent as a result of the current Phase 3 trial would have a severe negative effect on our
business, and, in the future, we may not have the financial resources to continue the development of Riquent or any
other potential drug candidates.

We are currently devoting nearly all of our resources to the development and approval of Riquent. Accordingly,
our efforts with respect to other drug candidates have significantly diminished.

Future development of our small molecules for the treatment of autoimmune diseases and acute and chronic
inflammatory disorders depends on our ability to obtain third party financing for this program including through a
joint venture, partmership or other collaborative arrangement. As a result, progress with respect to drug candidates
other than Riquent, if any, will be significantly delayed and our success-and ability to continue to operate depends
on whether we obtain regulatory approval to market Riquent. cot :

Current and future clinical trials may be delayed or halted.

Current and future clinical trials of Riquent, trials of drugs related to Riquent, or clinical trials of other drug
candidates may be delayed or halted. For example, in 2005, we limited patient enrollment in our ongoing clinical
benefit trial in an effort to reduce costs. In addition, our Phase 2/3 clinical trial of Riquent was terminated before
planned patient enrollment was completed. Current and future trials may be delayed or halted for various feasons,
inctuding: ‘ -

*+  supplies of drug product are not sufficient to treat the patients in the studies; .
= patients do not enroll in the studies at the rate we expect;

»  we do not have sufficient financial resources;

*  the products are not effective;
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.~ patients experience negative side effects or other safety concerns are raised during treatment;

+  the trials are not conducted in accordance with applicable clinical practices; or

+

|
f
{
|
E
i+ thereis political unrest at foreign clinical sites or natural disasters at any of our sites.

i .

! If any current or future trials are delayed or halted, we may incur mgmﬁcant additional expenses and our
potentlal approval of Riquent may be delayed, Wth]‘l could have a severe negatwe effect on our business.

We! may be required to design and conduct additional trials for R:queut. !

r . |
We may be required to design and conduct additional studies to further demonstrate the safety and efficacy
of quuent which may result in significant expense and delay. The FDA and forclgn regulatory authorities may
require new or additional clinical trials because of inconclusive results from current or earlier clinical trials
(mcludmg the Phase 2/3 and Phase 3 trials of Riquent), a possible failure to conduct clinical trials in complete
adherence to FDA good clinical practice standards and similar standards of forelgn regulatory authorities, the
ldcnnﬁcanon of new clinical trial endpoints, or the need for additional data {egardmg safety or efficacy. It is
p0551ble that the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities may not uitimately approve Riquent or cur other drug
candidates for commercial sale in any jurisdiction, even if we believe future clinical results are positive. .

We may expenence shortages of thuem for use in our clmrcal studies.

We may experience shortages of Riquent for use in our clinical studles We are lmplementmg a commercial
scale manufacturing process for Riguent, but we have only manufactured a hm1ted number of lots of Riquent at this
commerclal scale., In addition, the drug supply needed for our Phase 3 trlal as modified will require us to
manlufacturc significant quantities of Riquent in a compressed time frame. If we are unable to manufacture Riquent
in accordance with applicable FDA good manufacturing practices at this commerc1al scale, or if we incur production
delays our ability to timely complete clinical trials of Riquent will be negatively af’“fected

i : '

Ir we encounter delays or difficulties in estabhshmg or mainfaining retarwnshlps with manufacturing or
distribution contractors, our ability to timely complete necessary clinical trials and potentially dehver commercial
products may be negatively affected. I

I

' We may enter into arrangements with contract manufacturing compames to expand our own production
capac1ty in order to meet demand for our products or to attempt to improve manufacturmg efficiency. If we choose
10 contract for manufacturing services, the FDA and comparable foreign regulators would have to approve the
comract manufacturers prior to our use, and these contractors would be required to comply with strictly enforced
manufacturmg standards. We may aiso enter into agreements with contractors to prepare and distribute our drug
candidates for use by patients in clinical trials or.commercially. If we encounter delays or difficulties in establishing
of maintaining relationships with contractors to produce, package or distribute jour drug candidates, if they are
unable to meet our needs, if they are not approved by the regulatory authorities, or 1f‘ they fail to adhere to applicable
manufacturmg standards, our ability to timely complete necessary clm:cal trials and to introduce our products into

the market would be negatively affected.

. . . l
Our }imired manufaciuring capabilities and experience could result in shortagesl
reve?ues and profit margin could be neganve{y affected.

of drugs for future sale, and our

We have never operated a commercial manufacturing facility and we w1l] be required to manufacture
R:quent pursuant to applicable FDA good manufacturing practices. Our i 1nexper1ence could result in manufacturing
delays or interruptions and higher manufacturing costs. This could negatively affect our ability to supply the market
ona tlmely and competitive basis. The sales of our products if any, and our prof' t margins may also be negatively
affected. In addition, substantial capital investment in the expansion and build- out of our manufacturing facilities
and/olr the engagement of third party contract manufacturers will be required to enable us to mamufacture Riquent, if
approved in sufficient commercial quantities. We have limited manufacturmg experlence and we may be unable to
successfully transition to commercial production. ! l




Our suppliers may not be able to provide us with sufficient quantities of materials that we need to manufacture
our products.

We rely on outside suppliers to provide us with specialized chemicals and reagents that we use to
manufacture our drugs. In order to manufacture Riquent and our other drug candidates in sufficient quantities for our
clinical trials and possible commercialization, our suppliers will be required to provide us with an adequate supply
of chemicals and reagents. Our ability to obtain these chemicals and reagents is subject to the following risks:

» our suppliers may not be able to increase their own manufacturing capabilities in order to provide us with
a sufficient amount of material for our use;

+ some of our suppliers may be required to pass FDA inspections or validations or to obtain other
regulatory approvals of their manufacturing facilities or processes, and they may be delayed or unable to
do so;

* the materials that our suppliers use to manufacture the chemicals and reagents that they provide us may
be costly or in short supply; and

» there are a limited number of suppliers that are able to provide us with the chemicals or reagents that we
use to manufacture our drugs.

If we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of chemicals or reagents, our ability to produce products for
clinical studies and, therefore, to introduce products into the market on a timely and competitive basis, will be
impeded. The subsequent sales of our products, if any, and our profit margins may also be negatively affected.

An interruption in the operation of our sole manufacturing facifity could disrupt our operations.

We have only one drug manufacturing facility. A significant interruption in the operation of this facility,
whether as a result of a natural disaster or other causes, could significantly impair our ability to manufacture drugs
for our clinical trials or possible commercialization. h

Retaining our current personnel and recruiting additional personnel will be critical te our success.

We are highly dependent on the principal members of our scientific and management staff, the loss of
whose services may delay the achievement of our research and development objectives. Retaining our current key
personnel to perform clinical development, manufacturing, regulatory, and business development activities will be
critical to our near term success. We expect that recruiting additional qualified personnel to conduct clinical
development, manufacturing, regulatory, business development, and marketing and sales activities will be required
to successfully further develop Riquent and any additional drug candidates. Because competition for experienced
clinical, manufacturing, regulatory, scientific, business development, and marketing and sales personnel among
numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies and research and academic institutions is intense, we may
not be able to attract and retain these people. If we cannot attract and retain qualified people, our ability to conduct
necessary clinical trials, manufacture drug, comply with regulatory requirements, enter into collaborative
agreements and develop and sell potential products may be negatively affected because, for instance, the trials may
not be conducted properly, or the manufacturing or sales of our products may be delayed. In addition, we rely on
consultants and advisors to assist us in formulating our clinical, manufacturing, regulatory, business development,
and marketing and sales strategies. All of our consultants and advisors have outside employment and may have
commitments or consulting or advisory contracts with other entities that may limit their ability to contribute to our
business. :

We will need additional funds to support our operations.
. Our operations to date have consumed substantial capital resources. Before we can obtain FDA or foreign

regulatory approval for Riquent, we will need to successfully complete the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial and
possibly additional trials. Therefore, we expect to expend substantial amounts of capital resources for additional
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product development and clinical trials of Riquent. We may also devote substanttial additional capital resources to
establish commercial-scale manufacturing capabilities and to market and sell potential products. These expenses
may be incurred prior to or after any regulatory approvals that we may receive. Even with the net proceeds of
approximately $62.3 million from our stock and warrant offering in December 2005, we will need additional funds
to finance our future operations. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:

¢ the scope and results of our clinical trials; "
1

' e our ability to manufacture sufficient quantities of drug to support clinical trials;
« our ability to obtain regulatory approval for Riquent; '
o the time and costs involved in applying for regulatory approvals;

¢ continued scientific progress in our development programs;

o the size and complexity of our develbpment programs;

o the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims;
N . s 4

* competing technological and market developments; i
‘s our ability to(establiéh and_maimaih collaborative research and develo;ilﬁent arrangements;
L ; )

1 » our need to establish commercial manufacturing capabilities; and

+

v es . . . . 1
. our ability to develop effective marketing and sales programs. L

We expect to incur substantial losses each year for at least the next several years as we continue our
planned clinical trial, manufacturlng, regulatory, and devclopment activities. If we receive regulatory approval for
Riquent, or any of our other drug candidates, our manufacturing, marketing and sales activities are likely to
substantially increase our expenses and our need for additional working capital. In the future, it is possible that we
will not be able to obtain additicnal funds and thus not have adequate resources to support continuation of our.
busmess activities. ) . !

We may need to sell stock or assets, enter into collaborative agreements, significantly reduce our operations, or
merge;with another entity to continue operations.

+ '

* Our business is highly cash-intensive and we will need a significant amount of additional cash to continue
our operations. There can be no guarantee that additional financing will be availablé to us on favorable terms, or at
all, whether through issuance of additional securities, entry into collaborative arrangements, or otherwise. If
adequate funds are not available, we may delay, scale back or halt the ongoing Phase 3 clinical benefit trial of
Riquent, reduce the size of our workforce, sell or license our technologies or obtain funds through other
arrangéments with collaborative partners or others that require us to relinquish rights to our technologies or potential
products. We also may merge with another entity to continue our operations. Any one of these outcomes could have
a negative impact on our ability to develop products or achieve profitability if our products are brought to market. If,
and to the extent, we obtain additional funding through sales of securities, any investment in us will be diluted, and
dilution can be particularly substantial when the price of our common stock is low. -

Our freedam fo operate our business or profit fuliy Sfrom sales of our products may be limited if we enter into
collaborative agreements. .

We may need to collaborate with other pharmaceutical companies to gain access to their financial, research,
drug development manufacturing, or marketing and sales resources. However, we may not be able to negotiate
arrangements with any collaborative partners on favorable terms, if at all. Any collaborative relationships that we

17




enter into may include restrictions on our freedomto operate our business or may limit our revenues from potential
products. If a collaborative arrangement is established, the collaborative partner may discontinue funding any
particular program or may, either alone or with others, pursue alternative: technologies or develop alternative drug
candidates for the diseases we are targeting. Competing products, developed by a collaborative partner or to which a
coliaborative pariner has rights, may result in the collaborative partner withdrawing support as to all or a portion of
our technology.

Without collaborative arrangements, we must fund our own clinical development, manufacturing, and
marketing and sales activities, which accelerates the depletion of our cash and requires us to develop our own
manufacturing and marketing and sales capabilities. Therefore, if we are unable to establish and maintain
collaborative arrangements and if other sources of cash are not available, we will experience a severe adverse effect
on our ability to develop products and, if developed and approved, to manufacture, market and sell them

successfully.

Our blood test to measare the binding affinity for Riguent has not been validated by independent laboratories,
may require regulatory review as part of the Riquent approval process and results to date may not be reproduced
in current or future clinical trials.

In 1998, we developed a blood test intended to identify the lupus patients who are most likely to respond to
the 100 mg dose of Riquent, by measuring the strength of the binding between Riquent and a patient’s antibodies.
This affinity assay was used to identify, prospectively in the previous Phase 3 trial and retrospectively in the
Phase 2/3 trial, the patients included in the efficacy analyses. Independent laboratories have not validated the assay,
and the results of the affinity assay observed in our previous clinical trials of Riquent may not be reproducible in
current or future clinical trials or may not be observed in the broader Jupus patient population. Although the FDA
has reviewed the assay as part of the NDA review process of Riquent, the FDA has agreed that the assay will not be
included as part of the primary endpoint assessment in the current Phase 3 wrial. However, foreign regulatory
authorities may require that the assay be reviewed as part of their approval process for Riquent. If the assay is
required, we may be required to conduct additional studies on the assay post-approval. Additional regulatory
inspections or approval may be requlred for the testing laboratory that conducts the assay if the assay is required. If
foreign regulatory authorities require the use of the assay to identify potential patients for treatment with Riquent, or
if they require additional studies on the assay or additional regulatory approval of the testing laboratory, the
approval and possible commercialization of Riquent in these countries may be delayed or prevented which would
have a severe negative effect on our business.

Any regulatory approvals that we may obtain for our product candidates may be limited and subsequent issues
regarding safety or efficacy could cause us to remove products from the market,

If the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities grant approval of Riquent or any of our other drug candidates,
the approval may be limited to specific conditions or patient populations, or limited with respect to its distribution,
including to specified facilities or physicians with special training or experience. The imposition of any of these
restrictions or other restrictions on the marketing and use of Riquent could adversely afféct any future sales of
Riquent. Furthermore, even if a drug candidate is approved, it is possible that a subsequent issue regarding its safety
or efficacy would require us to remove the drug from the market.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for our product candidates, we will be subject to ongoing regulatory
obligations and review, including validation of our manufacturing facilities and processes.

* Following any regulatory approval of our product candidates, we will be subject to continuing regulatory
obligations such as safety reporting requirements and additional post-marketing obligations, including regulatory
oversight of the promotion and marketing of our products. In addition, we, and any third-party manufacturers, will
be required to adhere to regulations setting forth cGMPs. These regulations cover all aspects of the manufacturing,
testing, quality control and record keeping relating to our product candidates. Furthermore, we, and any third-party
manufacturers, will be subject to periodic inspection by regulatory authorities. These inspections may result in
compliance issues that would require the expenditure of significant financial or other resources to address. If we, or
any third-party manufacturers that we may engage, fail to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, we may




be subject te fines, suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals, product recalls, seizure of products, operating
restrictions and criminal prosecution. .
j
Although a successful pre-approval inspection was conducted by the FDA in July 2004, we have never
operated a commercial manufacturing facility and we have not yet completed the validation of our manufacturing
processes. If we are unable to maintain validated conditions at our manufacturing facilities or fail to successfully
validate our manufacturing processes to the satisfaction of the regulatory authorities, they will not approve quuent
for commercial use.

The size of the market for our potential products is uncertain.

We estimate that the number of people who suffer from lupus in the Umted States and Europe is potentially
more than 1 ,000,000 and those with renal impairment, which Riguent is designed to treat, is approximately 300,000,
However, there is limited information available regarding the actual size of these patient populations. In addition, it
is‘uncertain whether the results from previous or future clinical trials of Riquent will be observed in broader patient
populations, and the number of patients who may benefit from Riquent may be significantly smaller than the
estimated patient populations. Furthermore, management of patients with renal disease by specialists other than
nephrologists and rheumatologists is likely to reduce our ability to access patients who may benefit from Riquent.

i R * 1
Our drugs may not achieve market acceptance. '

Even if Riquent or our other drug candidates receive regulatory approval, patients and physicians may not
readily or quickly accept our proposed methods of treatment. In order for Riquent or our other drug candidates to be
commercially successful.we will need to increase the awareness and acceptance of our drug candidates among
physicians, patients and the medical community. Riquent is designed to be'administered weekly by intravenous
injection. It is possible that providers and patients may resist an intravenously administered therapeutic. It is also
possible that physician treatment practices may change and that the use of other drugs, either newly approved or
currently on the market for other conditions, may become widely utilized by clinicians for the treatment of patients
with lupus and reduce the potential use of Riquent in this patient population. In addition, if we are unable to

'manufacture drugs at an acceptable cost, physicians may not readily prescribe'drugs that we may manufacture due to

cost-benefit considerations when compared to other methods of treatment. If we are unable to achieve market

‘acceptance for approved products, our revenues and potential for profitabilityjwill be negatively affected.

We lack experience in marketing producis for commercial sale.

In order to commercialize any drug candidate approved by the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities, we

- must either develop marketing and sales programs or enter into marketing arrangements with others. If we cannot do

either of these successfully, we will not generate meaningful sales of any! products that may be approved. If we

" develop our own marketing and sales capabilities, we will be required to employ a sales force, establish and staff a

customer service department, and create or identify distribution channels for our drugs. We will compete with other
companies that have experienced and well-funded marketing and sales operations. In addition, if we establish our
own sales and distribution capabilities, we will incur material expenses and may experience delays or have difficulty
in gaining market acceptance for our drug candidates. We currently have no marketing arrangements with others.
There can be no guarantee that, if we desire to, we will be able to enter into any marketing agreements on favorable
terms, if at all, or that any such agreements will result in payments to us. If we enter into co-promotion or other
marketing and sales arrangements with other companies, any revenues that we may receive will be dependent on the
efforts of others. There can be no guarantee that these efforts will be successfuil,

We may not earn as much revenue as we hope due to possible changes in healthcare reimbursement policies.

The continuing efforts of government and healthcare insurance companies to reduce the costs of healthcare
may reduce the amount of revenue that we can generate from sales of future products, if any. For example, in certain
foreign markets, pricing and profitability of prescription drugs are subject to government control. In the United
States, we expect that there will continue to be a number of federal and state proposals to implement similar
government controls. In addition, an increasing emphasis on managed care in the United States will continue to put
pressure on drug manufacturers to reduce prices. Price control initiatives could reduce the revenue that we receive
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for any products we may develop and sell in the future. Moreover, even if Riquent were approved we cannot predict
what the dosage requirements or degree of efficacy would be and therefore whether or not healthcare reimbursement
policies would enable a sales price that allows us to be profitable.

We have a history of losses and may not become profitable.

We have incurred operating losses each year since our inception in 1989 and had an accumulated deficit of
approximately $299.8 million as of December 31, 2006. We expect to incur substantial losses each year for at least
the next several years as we conduct clinical trials of our drug candidates, seek regulatory approval and continue our
clinical development, manufacturing, and regulatory activities, In addition, assuming we ultimately receive approval
from the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities for Riquent or our other drug candidates, we will be required to
establish commercial manufacturing capabilities and marketing and sales programs which may result in substantial
additional losses. To achieve profitability we must, among other matters, complete the development of our products,
obtain all necessary regulatory approvals and establish commercial manufacturing, marketing and sales capabilities.
The amount of losses and the time required by us to reach sustained profitability are highly uncertain and we may
never achieve profitability. We do not expect to generate revenues from the sale of Riquent, if approved, or our
other products, if any, in the near term, and we may never generate product revenues,

QOur success in developing and marketing our drug candidates depends significantly on our ability to obtain
patent protection for Riquent and any other developed products. In addition, we will need 1o successfully preserve
our trade secrets and operate without infringing on the rights of others.

We depend on patents and other unpatented intellectual property to prevent others from improperly
benefiting from products or technologies that we may have developed. We currently own, 111 issued patents and 65
pending patent applications in the United States and in foreign countries. These patents and patent applications cover
various technologies and drug candidates, including Riquént, There can be no assurance, however, that any
additional patents will be issued, that the scope of any patent protection will be sufficient to protect us or our
technology, or that any current or future issued patent will be held valid if subsequently challenged. There is a
substantial backlog of biotechnology patent applications at the United States Patent and Trademark Office that may
delay the review and issuance of any. patents. The patent position of biotechnology firms like ours is highly
uncertain and involves complex legal and factual questions, and no consistent policy has emerged regarding the
breadth of claims covered in biotechnology patents or the protection afforded by these patents. We intend to
continue to file patent applications as believed appropriate for patents covering both our products and processes.
There can be no assurance that patents will be issued from any of these applications, or that the scope of any issued
patents will protect our technology.

We do not necessarily know if others, including competitors, have patents or patent applications pending
that relate to compounds or processes that overlap or compete with our intellectual property or which may affect our
freedom to aperate. We are aware of certain families of patents and patent applications that contain claims covering
subject matter that may affect our ability to develop, manufacture and sell our products in the future. We have
conducted investigations into these patent families to determine what impact, if any, the patent families could have
on our continued development, manufacture and, if approved by the FDA, sale of our drug candidates, including
Riquent. Based on our investigations to date, we currently do not believe that these patent families are likely to
impede the advancement of our drug candldates including Riquent.

However, there can be no assurance that upon our further investigation, these patent families or other
patents will not ultimately be found to impact the advancement of our drug candidates, including Riquent. If the
United States Patent and Trademark Office or any foreign counterpart issues or has issued patents containing
competitive or conflicting claims, and if these claims are valid, the protection provided by our existing patents or
any future patents that may be issued could be significantly reduced, and our ability to prevent competitors from
developing products or technologies identical or similar to ours could be negatively affected. In addition, there can
be no guarantee that we would be able to obtain licenses to these patents on commerciatly reasonable terms, if at all,
or that we would be able to develop or obtain alternative technology. QOur failure to obtain a license to a technology
or process that may be required to develop or commercialize one or more of our drug candidates may have a
material adverse effect on our business. In addition,. we may have to incur significant expenses and management
time in defending or enforcing our patents.
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We also rely on unpatented intellectual property such as trade secrets and improvements, know-how and
commumg technological innovation. While we seek to protect these rights, it is p0551ble that:

1+ others, including competitors, will develop inventions relevant to our business- : v
' .
.-+ our confidentiality agreements will be breached, and we may not have or be successful in obtammg,

« our trade secrets will otherwise become known or be independently dis'covered by competitors.

v

4,
| adequate remedies for such a breach; or .
!
|

. | . We could incur substantial costs and devote substantial management tlme in defending suits that others
might brmg against us for infringement of intellectual property rights or in prosecutmg suits that we might bring
agalnst others to protect our intellectual property rights. -~
: . - i

| . o .
The Ilechnoiagy underlying our products is uncertain and unproven.

All of our product development efforts are based on unproven technolog:es and therapeutlc approaches that
have not been widely tested or used. To date, no products that use our technology have been commercialized. The
FDA| has not determined that we have proven Riquent to be safe and effective m hurnans; and the technology on
Whlch it is based has been used only in our pre-clinical tests’and clinical trials. Fhmcal trials of Riquent may be
v1ewed as a test of our entire approach to developing therapies for annbody-medlated diseases. If Riquent does not
work as intended, or if the data from our clinical trials indicates that quuent is not safe and effective, the
appllcablllty of our technology for successfully treating antibody-mediated dtseases will be highly uncertain. As a
result, there is a significant risk that our therapeutic approaches will not prove to be successful, and there can be no
guarantee that our drug discovery technologies will result in any commercially successful products.

Beca‘fase a number of companies compete with us, many of which have greater resources than we do, and because
. . . + . i . .

we face rapid changes in technology in our industry, we cannot be certain that our products will be accepted in

the marketplace or capture market share. . :

o 1 . |

-+ Competition from domestic and foreign biotechnology companies, lar'gel pharmaceutical companies and
other iinstitutions is intense and is expected to increase. A number of companies and institutions are pursuing the
development of pharmaceuticals in our targeted areas. Many of these companies are very large, and have financial,
techmcal sales and distribution and other resources substantially greater than ours The greater resources of these
competltors could enable them to develop competing products more quickly than we are able to, and to market any
competmg product more quickly or effectively so as to make it extremely d:fﬁcu]t for us to develop a share of the
market for our products. These competitors also include companies that are conductmg clinical trials and pre-clinical
studles for the treatment of lupus. Our competitors may develop or obtain regularory approval for products more
rapldly than we do. If the FDA were to approve a drug that is significantly s1mllar in structure to Riquent for the
same indication that Riquent is designed to treat, and such drug received marketing exclusivity under the Orphan
Drug 'Act, the FDA may be prevented from approving Riquent. Also, the blotechnoiogy and pharmaceutical
industries are subject to rapid changes in technology. Our competitors may develop and market technologies and
produclts that are more effective or less costly than those we are developing, or that v\‘.'ould render our technology and
proposed products obsolete or noncompetitive. ‘

I
We mtiy not be able fo take advantage of the orphan drug designation for Riquent. ‘
| |
| In September 2000, the FDA granted us orphan drug designation for Riquent for the treatment of lupus
nephritis. The Orphan Drug Act potentially enables us to obtain research funding and tax credits for certain research
expenses. In addition, the Orphan Drug Act allows for seven years of exclusive marketmg rights to a specific drug
for a specﬂ' ¢ orphan indication. Exclusivity is conferred upon receipt of market:ng|approval from the FDA to the
first sponsor who obtains such approval for a designated drug The marketing exclusivity prevents FDA approval
during the seven-year period of the same drug, as defined in the FDA regulations, tfrom another company for the
same orphan indication. Whether we will be able to take advantage of some of the beneﬁts afforded by the orphan
drug desrgnatton will ultimately be determined by the FDA only after further review of our NDA.

e ——

I
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The use of Riquent or other potential products in clinical trials, as well as the sale of any approved products, may
expose us to lawsuits resulting from the use of these products.

The use and possible sale of Riquent or other botential products may expose us to legal liability and
negative publicity if we are subject to claims that our products harmed people. These claims might be made directly
by patients, pharmaceutical companies, or others. We currently maintain $10.0 million of proeduct liability insurance
for claims arising from the use of our products in clinical trials. However, product liability insurance is becoming
increasingly expensive. In addition, in the event of any commercialization of any of our products, we will likely
need to obtain additional insurance, which will increase our insurance expenses. There can be no guarantee that we
will be able to maintain insurance or that insurance can be acquired at a reasonable cost, in sufficient amounts, or
with broad enough coverage to protect us against possible losses. Furthermore, it is possible that our financial
resources would be insufficient to satisfy potential product liability or other claims. A successful product liability
claim or series of claims brought against us could negatively impact our business and financial condition.

We face environmental liabilities related to certain hazardous materials used in our operations.

Due to the nature of our manufacturing processes, we are subject to stringent federal, state and local laws
governing the use, handling and disposal.of certain materials and wastes. We may have to incur significant costs to
comply with environmental regulations if and when our manufacturing increases to commercial volumes. Current or
future environmental laws may significantly affect our operations because, for instance, our production process may
be required to be altered, thereby increasing our production costs. In our research and manufacturing activities, we
use radioactive and other materials that could be hazardous to human health, safety or the environment. These
materials and various wastes resulting from their use are stored at our facility pending ultimate use and disposal. The
risk of accidental injury or.contamination from these materials cannot be eliminated. In the event of such an
accident, we could be held liable for any resuiting damages, and any such liability could exceed our resources.
Although we maintain general liability insurance, we do not specifically insure against environmental liabilities.

1I. RISK FACTORS RELATED SPECIFICALLY TO OUR STOCK.
The ownership of our common stock is concentrated,

As of March 2, 2007, our three largest stockholders beneficially owned approximately 47% of our currently
outstanding shares of common stock. Investors who purchase our common stock may be subject to certain risks due
to the concentrated ownership of our common stock. For example, the sale by any of our large stockholders of a
significant portion of that stockholder’s holdings could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
common stock. In addition, two of these stockholders -have the ability, either alone or jointly, to appoint four
members of our board of directors. Accordingly, these two stockholders, either directly or indirectly, have the ability
to significantly influence the outcome of all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders.

Our common stock price is volatile and may decline even if our business is doing well,

The market price of our common stock has been and is likely to continue to be highly volatile. Market
prices for securities of biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies, including ours, have historically been highly
volatile, and the market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are
unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. The following factors, among others, can have a
significant effect on the market price of our securities:

* our clinical trial results;

« actions or decisions by the FDA anci other cémparab]e agencies;

» announcements of technological innovationg or new therapeutic products by us or others;
» developments in patent or other proprietary rights;

b

« public concern as to the safety of drugs discovered or developed by us or others;

b
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' ' i
I« future sales of significant amounts of our common stock by us or our stockholders; -

* developments concerning potential agreements with collaborators; [
|
)

I . ar
= comments by securities analysts and general market condmons; and

]
1+ government regulation, mc]udmg any legislation that may impact the pnce of any commetcial products
! that we may seek to sell. %

: | -
The realization of any of the risks described in these “Rlsk Factors” could have a negative effect on the
market price of our common stock. b

Future sales of our stock by our stockholders could negatively affect the market én'ce of our stock.
.

| Sales of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that suph sales could occur, could result
in a drop in the market price of our securities. As of March 2, 2007, there were: |
|

| » Approximately 32,701,431 shares of common stock that have been lssued in registered offermgs or were

. otherwise freely tradable in the public markets. '

| |

; i

b Apprommately 10,769 shares of common stock eligible for resale in the public market pursuant to SEC
Rule 144. |

' 1. !

v * 4,399.992 shares of common stock underlying warrants which have been reglstered for resale under a

. Registration Statement on Form S-3. . \

| _ !

- ! . . .

i * 4,666,178 shares of common stock that may be issued on the’ exercise of outstanding stock options
granted under our various stock option plans at a weighted average exercise price of $9.12 per share.

t + Approximately 605,377 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance pursuant to awards granted
] under our equity incentive and employee stock purchase plans, which shares are covered by effective
registration statements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (thel“Securities Act™).

| * Pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-3 filed on December 10, .’51002, we registered an aggregate
' amount of $125,000,000 of our common stock for issuance from time to time. As of March 2, 2007, there
was $53,937,500 of our common stock available for future issuance. }

We cannot estimate the number of shares of common stock that may actualiy be resold in the public market
because this wilt depend on the market price for our common stock, the individual circumstances of the sellers and
other factors. We also have a number of stockholders that own significant blocks of our common stock. If these
stockholders sell significant portions of their holdings in a relatively short time, for liquidity or other reasons, the
market price of our commen stock could drop significantly.

Our stock may be removed from listing on the Nasdaq Global Market and may notqualify for listing on any stock
exchange, in which case it may be difficult to maintain a market in our stock.
| &

In 2003, we received a notice from the Nasdaq Stock Market that our stock price fell below the required
minimum bid price. We have since regained compliance with the minimum bid price rule, but we are required to
maintain compliance in order to maintain our listing. In addition to the minimum bid price rule, the Nasdag Giobal
Market has several other continued listing requirements. Failure to maintain compliance with any Nasdaq listing
requirement could cause our stock to be removed from listing on Nasdagq. If this were; to happen, we may not be able
to secure listing on other exchanges or quotation systems. If our stock is no longer traded on an exchange or
quotation system, it may be difficult for our stockholders to sell the shares that they own. This would have a
negatlve effect on the price and liquidity of our stock.

: 23




Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price,

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires us to evaluate annually the effectiveness of our internal
controls over financial reporting as of the end of each fiscal year beginning in 2004 and to include a management
report assessing the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in all annual reports beginning with
the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, Section 404 also requires our
independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, and report on, management’s assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting. We evaluated our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
in order to comply with Section 404 and concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
such date. In addition, our independent registered: public' accounting firm reported on our assertion with respect to
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. If we fail to maintain the
adequacy of our internal controls, as such standards are modified, supplemented or amended from time to time, we
cannot provide any assurances that we will be able to conclude in the future that we have effective internal control
over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404, If we fail to achieve and maintain a system of effective
internal control over financial reporting, it could have a material adverse effect on our business and stock price.

Anti-takeover devices may prevent changes in our board of directors and management.
' . | .

We have in place several anti-takeover devices, inciuding a stockholder rights plan, which may have the
effect of delaying or preventing changes in our management or deterring third parties from secking 1o acquire
significant positions in our common stock. For example; one anti-takeover device provides for a board of directors
that is separated into three classes, with their terms in office staggered over three year periods. This has the effect of
delaying a changc in control of our board of directors without the cooperation of the incumbent board. In addition,
our bylaws require stockholders to give us written notice of any proposal or director nomination within a specified
period of time prior to the annual stockholder meeting, establish certain qualifications for a person to be elected or
appointed to the board of directors during the pendency of certain business combination transactions, and do not
allow stockholders to call a special meeting of stockholders.

We may also issue shares of preferred stock without further stockholder approval and upon terms that our
board of directors may determine in the future. The issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of making it
more difficult for a third party to acquire a majority of Q'ur outstanding stock, and the holders of such preferred stock
could have voting, dividend, liquidation and other rights superior to those of holders of our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2., Properties.

We lease two adjacent buildings in San Diego, California covering a total of approximately 54,000 square
feet. One building contains our research and development laboratories and clinical manufacturing facilities and the
other contains our corporate offices and warehouse. Both building leases expire in July 2009. Each lease is subject
to an escalation clause that provides for annual rent increases. We believe that these facilities will be adequate to
meet our needs for the near term. Over the longer term, management believes that addltlonal space can be secured at
commercially reasonable rates, i

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
. We are not currently a party to any legal proceedings.
f
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

|
None.




PARTII

Item 5. Market For Reglstrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

*

Infrmation About Our Common Stock -~ )
fl ) ' ’ ' r

., Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “LIPC.” Set forth below are the
high and low sales prices for our common stock for each full quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal
years. On December 21, 2005, we implemented a one-for-five reverse stock split. The dollar amounts below have
been adjusted to reflect the impact of the reverse stock split.

g Prices
‘ . : High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2006 :
' . ]
First Quarter........... ettt et s e e e e s R e en e b bbb e $ 565% 328
Second Quarter 4.95 347
Third QUAKTET ......coeeeee ettt s sm s e aesnssn et r e s S 4.10 3.50
FOUrth QUATTET ....ooviiiiciiieiiiciicie et e s s e s e e e e e s smesmseba s s s b e s basnbrsansnrnsnanens 3.79 2.97
i ' i
Year Ended December 31, 2005 '
T A LN 1 = GO O U PO U UUUTUU S ' £ 950% 3.00
Second Quarter .......... L U OO U U TV 5.35 1.80
Third QUATET ....ovvivireirerrise e s et se e sre e e s sesn e saner et srnsnnnns 5.00 3.65
FOUPE QUATTET eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeatesesseesesesesesesesesasesesseatasasassssarsnssasnsaossttrtrstessshessesnsnsamnsarnns 495 2.60

\ !

We have never paid dividends on our common stock and we do not anticipate paying dividends in the
foreseeable future. The number of record holders of our common stock as of March 2, 2007 was approximately 227.

Information About Our Equity Compensation Plans
' Information regarding our equity compensation plans is incorporated by re'ference in Item 12 of Part I of
this annual report of Form 10-K. |

.
'
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Stock Perfermance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock for the five
years ended December 31, 2006 with the Center for Research in Securities Prices (“CRSP”) Total Return Index for
the Nasdaq Global Market (U.S. Companies) and the CRSP Total Return Index for Nasdaq Pharmaceutical Stocks
(comprising all companies listed in the Nasdaq Global Market under SIC 283). The graph assumes that $100 was
invested on December 31, 2001 in our common stock and each index and that all dividends were reinvested. No
cash dividends have been declared on our common stock. The comparisons in the graph are required by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future
performance of our common stock.

$140 —
: _a
$120
nssnre — -
$100 e .
$80
$60
$40
$20 :
$0 a : | ; - a
12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 12/31/2006
=@=| 3 Jolla Pharmaceutical Company  ==fe=Nasdaq - US -.-Nasdaq - Pharmaceuticals
12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003  12/31/2004  12/31/2005  12/31/2006
La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company* $100 $72.71 $47.65 $i8.68 $8.28 $6.78
Nasdaq - US $100 $69.13 $103.36 $112.49 $£114.88 $126.22
Nasdagq - Pharmaceuticals 8100 . $64.62 $94.72 .$100.88 $111.09 $108.75

* La Jolta Pharmaceutical Company stock prices have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-five reverse stock split effective
December 21, 2005.
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1

* Item 6. Selected Financial Data. - o
_ i

., The following Selected Financial Data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Item 7 beginning at page 28 and the

consolidated financial statements of the Company and related notes thereto beginning at page F-2 of this report.

!
Years Endéd Decernber 31,

i .
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
- (In thousands, except per share amounts)
i

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:,

'
|

Exp‘enses: !
Research and development........ocoiiinininnane. $ 3769 $ 32385 § 33,169 % 22,598 § 32,938
General and adminiStrative .....cooooeeveereeeiieieee. 6,944 6,908 , 1,568 5,405 9,287
Loss from operations ..........coccveeveena e (44,640)  (39,293) - (40,737)  (28,003)  (42,225)
INLETES EXPENSE ....ovrer s G @10) | (i90) (116) (46)
INEETESE INCOIME <ot _ 1,373 . 665 . 383 _ 756 2,826
NEE TOSS oo seee e ees e seeeesseeeeee $ (43318) § (38,838) § ;(40,544) $ (27,363) $ (39,445)
Basic and diluted net loss per Share ................... $ (51508 (424) S, (3.40) 8 (177§  (121)
Shares used in colmputing basic and diluted net ' t 7 .
loss per share (1)..coceeicinncninnicniiniiiniecinieen, 8,409 9,161 11,941 15,446 32,588
Baiance Sheet Data: ' '
WOTKING Capital .vovvvveresrerrsesresseenessne o resessssasnsanees $ 46490 § 28914 $j' 17,539 § 70,124 § 37,673
TOtal ASSELS wv.vvrvvrvriirinrenisinisese e s . 5 61,864 & 41944 § 33,026 § 80,928 § 49,525
Noncurrent portion of obligations under capital !
leases and notes payable ....c.cccoeerricennienns $ L1111 § 1,341 §, 716 § 142 .§ 196
Stockholders’ eqUItY .....c.cceveereiniinniinenee e $ 53,799 § 36427 $ 26,001 $ 77,130 § 43,089
] l‘
(1) Shares have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-five reverse stock split effective December 21, 2005.
. , N l ‘ ] - - o | . ‘ . . ) - . . ; : .
L1 '
I !
R
| i
! \
: : |
i . }
| !
. , , . E
t
|
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Intreduction : J

Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is provided as a
supplement to the accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes to help provide an understanding
of our financial condition, the changes in our financial condition and our results of operations. Our discussion is
organized as follows:

* Recemt developments. This section provides a general description of recent events and significant
transactions that we believe are important in understanding our financial condition and results of
operations. '

» Overview. This section provides a general description of our business and operating history.

* Critical accounting policies and estimates. This section contains a discussion of the accounting policies
that we believe are important to our financial condition and results of operations and that require
significant judgment and estimates on the part of management in their application. In addition, all of our
significant accounting policies, including the critical accounting policies and estimates, are summarized
in Note 1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

s Results of operations. This-section provides an analysis of our results of operations presented in the
accompanying- consolidated statements of operations by comparing the results for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to the results for the year ended December 31, 2005 and comparing the results for the
year ended December 31, 20035 to the results for the year ended December 31, 2004,

» Liguidity and capital resources. This section provides an analysis of our cash flows and a discussion of
our outstanding debt and commitments, both firm and contingent, that existed as of December 31, 2006.
Included in the discussion of outstanding debt is a discussion of our financial capacity to fund our future
commitments and a discussion of other financing arrangements.

Recent Developments

2007 :
On March 8, 2007, we announced positive interim antibody results from our ongoing double-blind, placebo-
controlled randomized Phase 3 trial of Riquent Analyses of interim antibody data indicate that patients treated with
900 mg or 300 mg per week doses of Riquent had greater reductions in antibodies to dsDNA than patients treated
with 100 mg per week or placebo. The results showed a significant dose response when comparing all Riquent-
treated patients to placebo-treated patients (p < 0.0001), and each Riquent dose group to the placebo dose group (p <
0.0015 for 100 mg, p <0.0001 for 300 mg and 900 mg).

On February 1, 2007, we announced that we had made continued progress in enrolling patients in our Phase
3 clinical trial of Riquent in that we had enrolled 202 patients in the study and 74 clinical trial sites were open to
enroll patients, including newly added sites in Europe and Mexico. In addition, we also announced that following
‘recent discussions with the FDA, we have implemented several enhancements to further strengthen the Phase 3
study, which remains under Special Protocol Assessment. These enhancements include:

s Focus on higher doses — all new patients entering the study will be randomized in equal numbers to
receive weekly doses of either 300 mg or 900 mg of Riquent or placebo, with no further patients
randomized to the 100 mg dose group.

o Increase sample size — the study sample size is increased from approximately 600 to approximately 730

patients, which is expected to increase the likelihood of achieving a statistically significant outcome for
the individual dose groups when compared with placebo as well as overall.
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l » Broaden analysis of patient population — the primary endpoint will be assessed in all patients and will
no longer be restricted to the high-affinity subpopulation. We beheve that the increased binding
" capability of higher doses will eliminate the need for an affinity measurement prior to treatment.

+

) l « Combine current studies — to increase efficiency and enhance the quahty of data, we also combined the
! Phase 2 clinical pharmacology study with the Phase 3 study so that Riquent blood levels will be
i "~ collected in the same patient population as the definitive efficacy data. :

2006

On January 11, 2006, we announced that we would initiate a multi- dose clinical study of Riquent in lupus
patlents to evaluate the ability of higher doses of Riquent to further reduce anubodles to dsDNA. This study is part
of our overall clinical development program of Riquent, which includes the ongomg Phase 3 clinical benefit trial to
evaluate the use of Riquent in preventative and acute settings. Subsequently, in February 2007, this Phase 2 clinical
pharmacology study was combined with the Phase 3 study.

] On January 12, 2006, we announced that we had regained compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market
minimum bid price rule and that we were eligible to remain listed on the Nasdaq Global Market.
. . I
t  On March ]5 2006, we announced that Delrdre Y. Glllespne M.D. wds appointed to serve as our new
President and Chief Executive Officer following the resignation of Steven B. Engle on March 14, 2006. We also
announced that our board of directors had appomted Craig R. Smith, M.D., a current independent director, to serve
as Chairman of the board.
P
On June 22, 2006, we announced that our MAA had been accepted for er1ew by the EMEA for potential
approval to market Riquent in the EU. The MAA was filed with the EMEA on March 31, 2006. The EMEA's
review of the MAA would follow its centralized marketing authorization procedure Riquent has already received
orphan medicinal product designation in Europe which will provide 10 years of market exclusivity from the date of
the EU’s authorization, if any.

i

I On July 17, 2006, we announced that Michael J. B. Tansey, M.D., Ph.D. had Joined the Company as Chlef
'Medlcal Officer on a part-time basis, whereby 65% of his time is devoted to this position with the Company.
Effectwe December 4, 2006, Dr. Tansey became a full-time employee, assuming the title of Executive Vice
PreSIIdent and Chief Medlcal Officer.

| On August 9, 2006, we announced that we had reactivated enrollment in our Phase 3 trial of Riquent.

On September 27, 2006, we announced that we had made considerable progress on our Phase 3 trial of
Riquent in that we had added 27 new clinical trial sites able to screen and enroll patients for a total of 58 sites (22 in
the United States and 36 in Asia).

v I

On October 12, 2006, we announced that we had requested the withdrawal of our MAA. Ina prellmmary
assessment of the MAA, the EMEA reviewers indicated that additional clinicall data would be needed prior to
potentlal approval. Based on our review of the assessment, we believe that the ongoing clinical studies of Riquent
should provide the necessary data, however, the data will not be available within the timeframe that the EMEA
regulatlons allow for the review of the current Riquent application. Therefore, we decided to withdraw the current
appllcatlon and plan to refile the MAA afier the completion of the ongoing clinical !tnals if they are successful.

. On November 6, 2006, we announced that we had made further progress 1n enrolling patients and opening
sites for our Phase 3 clinical trial of quuent As of November 2006, 82 panents had been enroiled in the study,
more than 150 additional patients were in screening for potential enrollment and we had activated 65 clinical trial
sites, mcludlng newly-added sites in Europe. o
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Overview

Since our inception in May 1989, we have devoted substantially all of our resources to the research and
development of technology and potential drugs to treat antibody-mediated diseases. We have never generated any
revenue from product sales and have relied on public and private offerings of securities, revenue from collaborative
agreements, equipment financings and interest incotme on invested cash balances for our working capital. We expect
that our research and development expenses will increase significantly in the future. For example, we are conducting
and expanding a Phase 3 clinical trial of Riquent which the FDA has indicated appears to satisfy the requirement
that we conduct an additional randomized, double-blind study. This study is expected to involve approximately 730
patients and take two to three years to complete. Therefore, we expect to expend substantial amounts of capital
resources for the clinical development and manufacturing of Riquent. We may also devote substantial additional
capital resources to establish commercial-scale manufacturing capabilities and to market and sell potential products.
These expenses may be incurred prior to or after any regulatory approvals that we may receive. In addition, our
research and development expenses may increase if we initiate any additional clinical studies of Riquent or if we
increase our activities related to any additional drug candidates. We will need additional funds to finance our future
operations. Qur activities to date are not as broad in depth or scope as the activities we may undertake in thé future,
and our historical operations and the financial information included in this report are not necessarily indicative of

our future operating results or financial condition. ,

We expect our net loss to fluctuate from quarter to quarter as a result of the timing of expenses incurred and
the revenues earned from any potential collaborative arrangements that we may establish. Some of these fluctuations
may be significant. As of December 31, 2006, our accumulated deficit was approximately $299.8 million.

Our business is subject to significant risks, including, but not limited to, the risks inherent in research and
development efforts, including clinical trials, the lengthy, expensive and uncertain process of seeking regulatory
approvals, the need for additional financing or a collaborative partner, uncertainties associated with both obtaining !
and enforcing patents, the potential enforcement of the patent rights of others against us, uncertainties regarding
government reforms regarding product pricing and reimbursement levels, technological change, competition,
manufacturing uncertainties, our lack of marketing experience, the uncertainty of receiving future revenue from
product sales or other sources such as collaborative relationships, and the uncertainty of future profitability. Even if
our product candidates appear promising at an early stage of development, they may not reach the market for
numerous reasons, including the possibilities that the products will be ineffective or unsafe during clinical trials, will
fail to receive necessary regulatory approvals, will be difficult to manufacture on a large scale, will be uneconomical -
to market or will be precluded from commercialization by the proprietary rights of third parties or competing
products.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make éstimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis, including those related to patent
costs and clinical/regulatory expenses. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies involve significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements (see Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements).

Impairment and useful lives of long-lived assets

We regularly review our long-lived assets for impairment. Our long-lived assets include costs incurred to
file our patent applications. We evaluate the recoverability of long-lived assets by measuring the carrying amount of
the assets against the estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with them. At the time such evaluations
indicate that the future undiscounted cash flows of certain long-lived assets are not sufficient to recover the carrving
value of such assets, the assets are adjusted to their fair values. The estimation of the undiscounted future cash flows
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assoc1ated with long-lived assets requires judgment and assumptions that could differ materially from the actual
results. While we believe our current and historical operating and cash flow losses are indicators of impairment, we
belleve the future cash flows to be received from the long-lived assets will exce'ed the assets’ carrying value. We
have recognized approximately $0.1 million in impairment losses for each of the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005. There were no impairment losses recognized for the year ended Deceml?er 31, 2004

i Costs related to successful patent applications are amortized using the st'raight—line method over the lesser
of the remaining useful life of the retated technology or the remaining patent life, commencing on the date the patent
is 1ssued Legal costs and expenses incurred in connection with pending patent appl1cauons have been capitalized.
We expense all costs related to abandoned patent applications. If we elect to abandon any of our currently issued or
unissued patents, the related expense could be material to our results of operations for the period of abandonment.
The Ie:s.'(imation of useful lives for.long-lived assets requires judgment and assumptions that could differ materially
from the actual results. In addition, our results of operatlons could be materially impacted if we begin amomzmg the
costs related to unissued patents. g : :

i

| | |
Accr':.red clinical/regulatory expenses t

' We review and accrue clinical trial and regulatory-related expenses based on work performed, which relies
on estimates of total costs incurred based on patient enrollment, completion of stufdies and other events. We follow
this method since reasonably dependable estimates of the costs applicable to va rious stages of a clinical trial can be
made Accrued clinical/regulatory costs are subject to, revisions as trials progréss 1o completion. Revisions are
charged to expense in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known. Historically,
revisjons have not resulted in material changes to research and development costs; however a modification in the
protocol of a clinical trial or cancellation of a tr1al could result in a charge to our resu]ts of operations.
Sharé-Based Compensation %

|

t . . hl '

1 We adopted Statement of Financial- Accounting Standard (*SFAS”) N(l) 123R, Share-Based Payments
(“SFAS 123R”) using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application of the accounting
standard as of January 1, 2006, the first day of our 2006 fiscal year. Our Consolidated Statement of Operations as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the impact of SFAS 123R. ln accordance with the modified
prospectwe transition method, our Consolidated Statements of Operations for prior perlods have not been restated to
rcﬂect and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R. Share-based compensation expense recognized under SFAS
123Rifor the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $5.0 million. As of December 31, 2006, there was
approximately $8.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based payment
awards granted under all equity compensation plans. Total unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted for
future changes in estimated forfeitures. We currently expect to recognize the remammg unrecognized compensation
cost over a weighted-average period of 1.2 years. Additional share- based compensatlon expense for any new share-
based' 'payment awards granted after December 31, 2006 under all equity compensauon plans cannot be predlcted at
this time because it will depend on; among other matters; the amounts of share- based payment awards granted in the
future R . . X e : . “ P

' T

. Prior to January. 1, 2006 we had adopted the dlsclosure-only provision of SFAS No. 123, Accountmg and
Dtsciosure of Stock- Baved Compensanon (“SFAS 1237).  Accordingly,, we had .not previously recognized
compensanon expense, except for-compensation expense related to stock . opudns granted to consultants and
restricted stock. granted to certain members of management, Had we recogmzed compensation expense in
accordance with SFAS 123 for the year endedDecember, 3¢, 2005 and 2004, our net loss would have increased by
approxlmately $3.8 million and approximately $6.9 million, respectively, or $0.25 and $0.57, respectlvely, per basic
and dlluted share. 5

’ 4 - . B T b I -

New Accounting Pronouncements A 'i

In February 2007, the Financial Accoummg Standards Board (“FASB") lssued SFAS No. 159, The Fair
Value Oprion for Financial Asseis and Financial Liabilities — Including an amendmem of FASB Statement No. 115
(“SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair vatue option has been %:lected are reported in earnings.

‘
L . !
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SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November, 15, 2007. We are currently assessing the impact of
SFAS 159 on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108
(“SAB 108"). SAB 108 addresses the process and diversity in practice of quantifying financial statement
misstatements resulting in the potential build up of improper amounts on the balance sheet. SAB 108 is effective for
annual periods ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material effect on our
consolidated results of operations and financial position as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006.

In September 2006, FASB. issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, The
changes to current practice resulting from the application of SFAS 157 relate to the definition of fair value, the
methods used to measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. We
currently de not believe that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our consolidated results of
operations and financial condition.

In June 2006, FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 487),
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements in accordance
with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 provides guidance on the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be 1aken in a tax return, FIN 48 also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and
transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and is required to be adopted by us
in fiscal 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated resuits of operations and
financial condition.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3 (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 changed the requirements
for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 applies to all voluntary changes
in accounting principles and changes required by an accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the
pronouncement does not include specific transition -methods. The adoption of SFAS 154 did not affect our
consolidated results of operations and financial condition as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006. Its
effects on future periods will depend on the nature and significance of any future accounting changes subject to
SFAS 154. N

Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Research and Deve!opmem Expense. Our research and development expense increased to $32.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from $22.6 million in 2005. The increase in research and development expenses
in 2006 from 2005 resulted primarily from an increase in Riquent-related drug production and clinical trial expenses
of approximately $8.2 million. In addition, the increase was due to share-based compensation expense recorded in
connection with the adoption of SFAS 123R of approximately $1.8 million and an increase in Riquent-related
consulting expenses of approximately “$0.6 million. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in
termination benefits, mainly relating to severance, of.approximately $1.0 million that was recorded in 2005 in
connection with the termination of 44 research and development personnel, and the savings in salarles and related
expenses as a result of this reduction in personnel.

Our research and development expense decreased to $22.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $33.2 million in 2004. The decrease in research and development expenses in 2005 from 2004 resulted
primarily from a reduction in expenses related to the purchase of raw materials for the production of Riquent of
approximately $4.9 million and a reduction in consulting and professional services of approximately $1.9 million
due to a decrease in activities related to the development of Riquent. Also contributing to these decreases were the
cost savings related to our March 2005 restructuring.
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‘ Research and development expense of $32.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted of
$29.1 million for lupus research and development related expense and $3.8 million for SSAO research and
development related expense. Total lupus research and development expense consisted primarily of salaries and
other costs related to manufacturing, clinical and research personnel, Riquent-related drug production and clinical
trial expenses, fees for consulting and professional outside services and depreciation expense. Total SSAQ research
and development expense consisted primarily of salaries and other costs related to research and development
personnel, research supplies, rent and lease expense, depreciation expense and fees for pharmacology, toxicology
and other SSAO-related studies. ! .

t We expect that our research and.development expense will increase significantly in the future. For
example we are conducting and expanding a clinical trial of Riquent that the FDA has indicated appears to satisfy
the requirement that we conduct an additional randomized, double-blind study. This study is expected 10 involve
approximately 730 patients and take two to three years to complete. As patient enrollment expands in our Phase 3
trial as modified, our expenses for the manufacturing of Riquent will also increase. Additionally, our research and
development expenses may increase significantly if we initiate any additional clinical studies of Riquent or if we
mcrease our activities related to the development of additional drug candidates. )

1

General and Administrative Expense Our general and administrative expense increased to $9.3 million for
the year ended December 3!, 2006 from $5.4 million in 2005. The increase in general and administrative expense in
2006 from 2005 resulted: primarily from share-based compensation expense recorded in connection with the
adoption of SFAS 123R of approximately $3.2 million. The increase was also due to the expense recorded in the
first quarter of 2006 for severance paid to the former Chairman and Chief Executwe Officer of approximately $0.9
million and an increase in general corporate consulting and professional outs:de services of approximately $0.6
million. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in termination benefits, mainly refating to severance, of
approximately $0.5 million that was recorded in 2005 in connection with the termination- of 16 general and
administrative personnel, and the savings in salaries and related expenses as a result of this reduction in personnel

1 . . ;

' Our general and adrmmstratwe expense decreased to $5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $7.6 million .in 2004. The decrease in general and administrative expense in 2005 from 2004 resulted
primarily . from a reduction in. consulting fees for pre-marketing and other general corporate activities of
approxrmateiy $2.5 million. This decrease was partlaliy offset by the termmatlon benefits recorded in connection
with' the March 2005 restructuring noted above.

. :

General and administrative expense will increase in the future to support our ongoing clinical trials as

patient enrollment and the manufacturing of Riquent increases. Additionally, general and administrative expense
may increase in the future if there is an increase in research and development or commercialization activities.

' Interest Income and Expense. Our interest income increased to $2.8 million for the year ended December

31, 2006 from $0.8 million in 2005. The increase in interest income in 2006 was due to higher average balances of

cash and short-term investments and higher average interest rates on our investments as compared to 2005. Our

interest income increased to $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $0.4 million for 2004 due to

higher average interest rates on our investments and higher average balances of cash and shon-term investments as
compared to 2004, ‘ |
l

Interest expense was comparable for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. Interest

expense decreased to $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $¢.2 million in 2004. The decrease in

interest expense in 2005 as compared to 2004 was due to lower principal balances on outstanding notes payab]e
obhganons because there were no new debt obligations entered into in 2005. ;

|
i

Net Operating Loss and Research Tax Credit Canyforwards. As-of December 31, 2006, we had available
net operating loss carryforwards.and research tax credit carryforwards of approximately $275.4 million and $14.0
million, respectively, for federal income tax purposes, which will begin to expire in 2007. Approximately $3.1
million of the federal net operating loss carryforward expired in 2006 and approximately $0.1 miilion of the federal
research tax credit carryforward expired in 2006, In- addition; approximately $4.6 million of the federal net
operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2007 unless utilized and approximately $0.3 million of the
federal research tax credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2007 unless utilized. lAs of December 31, 2006, we

+

\ 33




o

had available net operating loss carryforwards and research tax credit carryforwards of approximately $144.3

million and $7.8 million, respectively, for California income tax purposes, which will begin to expire in 2009 unless

utilized. Approximately $0.3 million of the California net operating loss carryforward is set to expire in 2009 unless

| utilized. Pursuant to Sections 382 and 383 ‘of the Internal Revenue Code, annual use of our net operating loss and

| research tax credit carryforwards may be limited if a cumulative change in ownership of more than 50% occurs
within a three-year period. :

Liquidity and Capital Resources

From inception through December 31, 2006, we have incurred a cumulative net loss of approximately
$299.8 million and have financed our operations through public and private offerings of securities, revenues from
collaborative agreements, equipment financings and interest income on invested cash balances. From inception
through December 31, 2006, we had raised $337.0 million in net proceeds from sales of equity securities.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $42.9 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, as
compared to $72.9 million as of December 31, 2005. QOur working capital as of December.31, 2006 was $37.7
million, as compared to $70.1 million as of December 31, 2005. The decrease in cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments resulted from the use of our financial resources to fund our manufacturing and clinical trial
activities, research and development efforts, and for other general corporate purposes. We invest our cash in United
States government-backed securities, debt instruments of entities with strong credit ratings and money market funds.
As of December 31, 2006, we classified all of our investments as available-for-sale securities because we expect to
sell them in order to support our current operations regardless of their maturity dates. As of December 31, 2006,
available-for-sale securities and cash equivalents of $14.2 million have stated maturity dates of one year or less and
$27.1 million have maturity dates after one year. Securities that have a maturity date greater than one year have their
interest rate reset periodically within time periods not exceeding 92 days.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately $1.1 million of equipment (30.5 million net of depreciation) is
financed under notes payable obligations. In December 2006, we entered into a credit facility to fund equipment
purchases up to $1.8 million until the end of the second quarter of 2008. In addition, we lease our office and

| laboratory facilities and certain equipment under operating leases. We have also entered into non-cancelable

| purchase commitments for an aggregate of $2.8 million with third-party manufacturers of materials to be used in the

| production of Riquent. We intend to use our current financial resources to fund our obligations under these purchase

| commitments. In the future, we may increase our investments in property and equipment if we expand our research
and development and manufacturing facilities and capabilities.

The fb]lowiﬁg table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006. Long-term debt
obligations include interest.

Payment due by period {in thousands)

Less than More than

! Total _ __1 Year 1-3 Years _3-5 Years 5 Years

Long-term debt obligations.........coovceevevevccvnescccvccveeeeeet $0 433 8 209 § 224 8 — % —
Operating lease obligations...........cooooiiniiinccci e, 2,292 801 1,474 17 —
Purchase obligations .........ccooooeii e, 2,856 2,856 — — —
TOMAL .o e $ 5581 S 3866 $ 1,698 % 17 8 —

We intend to use our financial resources to fund the current clinical studies of Riquent, possible future
clinical trials, manufacturing activities, research and development efforts and for working capital and other general
corporate purposes. The amounts that we actually spend for each purpose may vary significantly depending on a
number of factors, including the results from current and future clinical trials, the continued analysis of the clinical
trial data of Riquent, the outcome of our meetings with regulatory authorities, the timing of any regulatory
applications and approvals, and technological developments. Expenditures also will depend on any establishment of
collaborative arrangements and contract research as well as the availability of other funding or financings.

We anticipate that our existing cash, cash investments and the interest earned thereon, will be sufficient to

fund our operations as currently planned through at least December 31, 2007. This projection -is based on the
assumption that we do not raise any additional funds, either through the sale of additional securities or a
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collaborative agreement with a corporate partner and that we do not engage in any significant commercialization
activities or significant activities in our other research programs. We will continually evatuate our planned
activities. If we do not raise any additional funds in 2007, we may take one or more significant cost reducing
measures including reducing our workforce and/or suspending the enrollment of additional patients into the current
Phase 3 trial. Any significant change in our planned activities or in the assumptlons underlying our cash projection
referred to above could result in a change to such cash pl‘O_]CC[]OI‘l

.~ We have no current means of generating cash flow from operations. Our lead drug candidate, Riquent, will

not generate revenues, if at all, until it has received regulatory approval and has been successfully manufactured,
marketed and sold. This process, if completed, will take a significant amount of time. Our other drug candidates are
much less developed than Riquent. There can be no assurance that our product development efforts with respect to
Riquent or any other drug candidate will be successfully completed, that reqmred regulatory approvals will be
obtained or that any product, if introduced, will be successfully marketed or. ‘achieve commercial acceptance.
Accordingly, we must continue to rely on outside sources of financing to meet our capital needs for the foreseeable
future, '
i We will continue to seek capital through any number of means, including by issuing our equity securities
and by establishing one or more collaborative arrangements. However, there can be no assurance that additional
financing will be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all, and our negotiating position in capital-raising efforts
may ' Worsen.as we continue to usé existing resources or if the development of Riquent is delayed or terminated.
There i$ also no assurance that we will be able to énter into further collaborative relationships. In the future, it is
possible that we will not have adequate resources to support continuation of our business activities.

Item' 7A. Quéntitativé and Qualitative.Disclosures About Market Risk. 1

. We invest our excess cash in interest-bearing investment-grade securities ' which we sell from time to time
to support our current operations. We do not utilize derivative financial instruments, derivative commodity
instruments or other market risk sensitive instruments, positions or transactions in any material fashion. Although
the investment-grade securities that we hold are subject to changes in the financial standing of the issuer of such
securities, we do not believe that we are subject to any material risks arising from the maturity dates of the debt
instruments or changes in interest rates because the interest rates of the securities in which we invest that have a
maturity date greater than one year are reset periodically within time periods not exceeding 92 days. We currently do
not invest in any securities that are materially and directly affected by foreign currency exchange rates or
commodlty prices.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The financial statements and supplementary data required by this item are set forth above under the caption
“Quarterly Results’ of Operations” on page F-20 and at the end of this report begmmng on page F-2 and is
incorporated herein'by reference.

Item 9 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

|
None.

v

1

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures. ‘ !
. L]

fa} Disclosure Controls and Procedures; Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive and principal financial officers, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™)) as of December 31, 2006. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive and principal financial officers concluded that our disclosure controls and

procedures were effective as of December 31, 2006. .
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- There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matenally affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

(b} Management Report on Internal Control Qver, Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15(f) promulgated
under the Exchange Act as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive and principal
financial officers and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures
that: .

i * Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of our assets;

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

| expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors;
‘ and . . . .

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
‘ disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting maS( not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2006. In making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective based on those criteria. .

The independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements that
are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an audit report on our internal control over financial
reporting and on our assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. The report appears below.

{c) Report Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, that La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Intermal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {the COSQO
cniteria). La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
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about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was mamtameld in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. ‘

i

| A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 'statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of)financial statements in accordance
with. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditufes of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial Statements {
i

' Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reportmg may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of compliance with the
pohcnes or procedures may deteriorate. !

! I :

In our opinion, management’s assessment that La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 is fairly statecl1 in all materiat respects, based on
the|COSO criteria: Also,.in our opinion, La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company maintained, in all material respects,
effectlve internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have. audited, in accordance with the standards of the Publié Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of La Jolla Pharmaceut:cal Company as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash flows for each

of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of La Jolla Pharmaceutlcal Company and our report dated
March 7, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

nl
1

’

B - sl Emst&Young LLP

San Drego California
March 7, 2007

L
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Item 9B. Other Information. ' . N
None.
PART II1
Item 18. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information required by this item will be contained in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of December 31, 2006. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of conduct that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Principal Accounting
Officer, and to all of our other officers, directors, employees and agents. The code of conduct is available at the
Corporate Governance section of the Investor Relations page on our website at www. ljpc.com. We intend to
disclose future amendments to certain provisions of our code of conduct on the above website within four business
days following the date of such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Information required by this item will be contained in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commission

within 120 days of December 31, 2006. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters. R

Information required by this item will be contained in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of December 31, 2006. Such mfmmanon is incorporated herein by reference
Item 13. Certain Relatmnshlps and Related Transactlons, and Director Independence

Information required by this item will be contained in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn
within 120 days of December 31, 2006. Such information is incorporated herein by reference. :
Item 4. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required by this item will be contained in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of December 31, 2006. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PARTIV -

I
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this report. . :

|
1. The following consolidated financial statements of La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company are filed as part of
this report under Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 20035 : F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2b06 2005 and 2004 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 : F-4
Consolidated Statements .of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005and 2004 ~  F-5

l

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements | F-6
!

2. Financial Statement Schedules. lt
. 1

These schedules are omitted because they are not required, or are not appllcable or the required information
is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
t

3. Exhibits. |

The exhibit index attached to this report is incorporated by reference herein.

|
i.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
‘ g

LA JOLLA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY

: :By: fs/ Deirdre Y. Gillespie.
March 14, 2007 Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D.
President, Chief Executive Ofticer
and Assistant Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

)

Signature . Title  Date

fs/ Deirdre Y. Gillespie President, Chief Executive Officer and March 14, 2007
Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D. Assistant Secretary (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Gail A. Sloan Vice President of Finance and Secretary March 14, 2007
Gail A. Sloan (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Thomas H. Adams Director - March 14, 2007
Thomas H. Adams, Ph.D. e

/s/ Robert A. Fildes Director . March 14, 2007
Robert A. Fildes, Ph.D.

/sf Stephen M. Martin Director March 14, 2007
Stephen M. Martin :

/s Nader J. Naini Director March 14, 2007
Nader J. Naini

/s/ Craig R, Smith Director March 14, 2007
Craig R. Smith, M.D.

/s/ Martin Sutter Director March 14, 2007
Martin Sutter

/s/ James N. Topper Director - March 14, 2007
James N. Topper, M.D., Ph.D.

/s/ Frank E. Young Director | March 14, 2007
Frank E. Young, M.D., Ph.D. :
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
o |
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company as of
December 31, 2006 and;2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash-
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also include the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements are,the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnanCIal statements based on our
audits. i

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company !Accouming Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, .
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemnents. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

| ‘

.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended December 31, 2006, in conformity
with U.8. generally accepted accounting principles. r

. ¥

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company changed its
method of accounting for Share-Based Payments in accordance with Statement of Fman(:la] Accounting Standards
No.:123R (revised 2004) effective January 1, 2006. S ‘

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Aecountmg Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzatlons of the Treadway Commission and our repon dated March 7, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. _ ‘ i

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 7, 2007




Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ...
Short-term investments........

La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company
Consolidated‘B.alance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and par value amounts)

Prepaids and other current assets .......c.ooovieveiireiisnnnens e emem e

Total current assets ..........

Property and eqQUIPINENE, NEL.....c..ovcieeircrrerereereene e eneresesesseses e eesreseserarnsesseseasenesssanenes
Patent cOSts and OTher ASSEES, MEL .....cccvviiieceee e teee e cssnssssseatsesaretaesstsensaiaessesssessssases

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable ..............

Accrued clmlcal/regulatory €Xpenses...

Accrued expenses...

Accrued payroll and related expenses ...........................................................................
Current portion of obligations under notes payable ...
Total current Habiliies .......ccurveivnnniriniii s

Non-current portion of obligations under notes payable ........eeeeeeveeernnnninnnnininnnen

Commitments

Stockholders equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 8,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or

outstanding ...........ccooeeeenes

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 225,000,000 shares authorized, 32,692,676 and
32,533,047 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.......cocoeineeene.

Additional paid-in CAPILAL....c.vivvier s e arres v a s et s eesbesasabesns

Accumulated deficit..............
Total stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,

2006 2005

$ 3820 % 6,411
39,080 66,466

1,004 903
43,913 73,780
2,333 4,037
3,279 3,11

$ 49,525 § 80,928

$ 2,125 % 866

1,530 - 227
1,137 1,284
1,265 . 778
183 501
6,240 3,656
196 o142
327 325

342,519 337,117
(299.757)  (260,312)

43,089 77,130

$ 49,525 § 80,928




‘ La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Consolidated Statements of Operations

: (In thousands, except per share amounts)
i ; Years Ended December 31,
| . . 2006 2005 2004
Expenses: . . ,
Research and develOpment ........ceverveerererneesrearanersecrarecsoserssnernnees 9 132,938 $ 22,598 § 33,169
General and adminISITATIVE ....c.eevvveee e ree et cer e searsrs s eressrenserrenser 9,287 5405 7,568
D TOtAl @XPEISES.....vvevveeoeeeereseeeeoseseees e seeeseseseeeeseeeees o seeeeesernseseenee 142235 28003 40,737

0SS fTOM OPEIANONS 1.oieii et a et e et ee et e e e mee e em e e eeee e e eeeeeana (42,225) (28,003)  (40,737)
J

Cow@e e (90)

Inté:rest EXPENSE ...overvencrrnne OO
Interest INCOME ..c.cuveeeeceiiee e SOV -1 2826 756 383
INEL 0SS .ot reeserensss e en s e easar s e nsns s nesesereseressne revernenaees $ (39.445) § (27,363) § (40,544)
Basic and diluted net loss 512 ] 11 OO e $. (12D (17D F (3.40)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share (1} ..........c....... ; 32,588 15,446 11,941
See accompanying notes. i

i

h._*,_._.__
(1) On December 21, 2005, the Company effected a one-for-five reverse stock split, Wl’llCh has been applled

retroactively to all periods presented. \

+
]
i
1
i
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Additionanl Other Total
Common stock paid-in comprehensive Accumulated stockholders®

: . Shares Amount capital income (loss) deficit equity
Balance at December 31, 2003 .....oooiveiieeeees 10,225 % 102§ 228,803 $ (7Y $ (192,405 $ 36427
. Issuance of common stock net.. 2,000 ) 20 29,343 — ) — 29,363

Issuance of common stock under Employec : to-

Stock Purchase Plan... .76 ) 1 574 —_ . — 575
Exercise of stock options 1 . — 12 — — 12
Share-based compensalion expense .. . -_— R 118 — — 118
Net 1088, — — - — (40,544) (40,544)
Net unreahzed gams on avallable-for-sale :

"SECULILIES 1eveerie e srsssrenstnems essiestsestvsstrsstrssrrsssiassss _ — - 50 — 50
Comprehensive loss......... . (40,494)

Balance at December 31, 2004 ... 12,302 123 258,850 (23) (232,949) 26,001
Issuance of common stock, net... 20,050 © 200 77,953 — — 78,155
Issuance of common stock under Employee

Stock Purchase Plan.........oocvoeeioeicc e 95 1 287 — —_ . 288
Exercise of stock options ................ 3 — 6 —_ — 6
Share-based compensauon cxpcnse 83 . 1 19 — -— 20
Net loss... — — —_ —_ (27,363) < {27,363)
Net unrcahzcd galns on avmlable-

securities .. — = — 23 — 23
Comprehenswe Ioss . (27,340}

Balance at December 31, 2()05 ............................... 32,533 325 337,117 — (260,312) 77,130
[ssuance of common stock under Employee - ! . .

Stock Purchase Plan. ..o 80 1 226 . - —_ 227
Exercise of stock options....c.c.cee. 56 1 125 — — 126
Share-based compensation expense ... - 24 — 5,051 — — 5,051
NETIOSS ..o coriinircnictrenisii s casnsennenenensianrnes — — — — (39,445) (39,445)

Balance at December 31, 2006 .....c.covceereveervvsnnnns 32,693 3% 327 $ 342,519 L $ (299,757) § 43,089

See accompanying nofes.
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|
i
La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company {|

[
|
1
|
| Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
; * (In thousands) '
| ‘ Years Ended December 31,
, i_2006 2005 2004
Operating activities |
NEEIOSS c.ovvveevreetesesesssssssssessssegesssssssessssssessssssessess s sssaesssssesssssssesssssass s ssssanas $i (39,445) $ (27,363) § (40,544)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for ‘operating activities: .

Deprecnatlon F Vot I3 110 1 U0 U o O . 1,987 . 2,109 2,083

Loss on write-off/disposal of patents, licenses and property and
equipment

} .
| 420 405 198
Share-based compensation expense | 5,051 20 118
Alceretion of interest income, net .. ‘ 36 (125) 26
Changes in operating assets and llabllltles '
1
|
|

1 Prepaids and other CUITent ASSELS ......covvveeeieveserre s s e e (1ol (120) 174
1 Accrued clinical/regulatory eXpenses ........coovvvevnineesesie e 1,303 (420) 123
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses...........vvveiiiveeieiriiieesecsessanenas 1,112 (1,366) 2,313

487 (432) (482)

IAccrued payroll and related eXpenses.......c.ovvveeiieiiiiiiic e isisssin s
, Net cash used for operating activities

................................................... (29,150) . (27,292)  (35,931)
¥

Investing activities | : )

Purchases of short-term investments ... (16,700)  (82,350) (37,36%)

Sales of SNOTL-1EITN INVESHTMENIES ... ..cvvveoooeevsveseseessese s nsssnssssssssssssonsssseseneseee 144,050 36,236 45,297

Additions to property and qUIPIMENL ..........oc.ovuoveeeeeeeeeseeesreesesseeeeseereeesee. t (335) (123) (1,882)

Increase in patent costs and other assets .........c.oooev e cieceeeeeee e . {536) (361) (723)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities.........c.cocovvrviernenen 26,479 (46,598) 5,327

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ............. et e e aaeraneensaeaies . 353 78,449 29,950
Procéeds from issuance of notes payable

......................................................... | 263 — 478
Payments on obligations under notes payable ...........coevninnvcninnnirnee e, (527) (995) (903)
Payments on obligations under capital leases ..o - (14) (81)

! Net cash provided by financing activities ............ccoveivioeresererenererenss ]? 89 77,440 29,444
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents........c.cocovviiiiiiiiiinin, (2,582) 3,550 (1,160)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period........c.ccccocciniiiinnn. 6,411 2,861 4,021
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ..........coeovveeeiecicicnrene s $ 3,829 § 6411 § 23861
l !
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: ]
INEETESE PAIA 1evvvverrrrurnreruenssiseriessesssserssss s sess st essasssss s sssesaassessasssssassrasases § ' 46 % 116 $ 150
; : ' Y
See accompanying notes. l‘
'; |
i |
! |
| |
l |
i |
< -
?
| .
]
\
|




La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Business Activity

La Jolia Pharmaceutical Company (the “Company”) is a bmpharmaceumal ¢ompany dedicated to improving and
preserving human life by developing innovative pharmaceutlcal products.

Basis of Presentation “
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue
as a going concern. This basis of accounting contemplates the recovery of the Company's assets and the satisfaction
of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company is actively seeking additional funding, including
through collaborative arrangements and through the public and/or private financings, to finance its continuing
development efforts and to commercialize its technologies. The Company believes that additional funds can be
obtained in the near future; however, there is no assurance such funds will bé available to the Company when
needed or that such funds would be available under favorable terms. In the event that the Company cannot obtain
additional funds in the near future, the Company has indicated its ability and intent to cut back on certain
expenditures and/or reduce its operations, which could have an impact on completing its development effotts in a
timely manner. The Company believes that it has the ability to manage its working capital to fund the Company's
‘operations through at least December 31, 2007.

4

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary, La Jolla Limited, which was incorporated in England in October 2004. There have been no significant
transactions related to La Jolla Limited since its inception.

Use of Estimates .
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) requires management to-make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements and disclosures made in the accompanying notes to the consolldated financial
statements, Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term lnvestmenté

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid investments which include money market funds and debt
securities with maturities from purchase date of three months or less and are stated at market. Short-term
investments mainly consist of debt securities with maturities from purchase date of greater than three months. In
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, management has classified the Company’s cash equivalents and short-
term investments as available-for-sale securities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Available-
for-sale securities are stated at fair market value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in other comprehensive
income (loss). Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-
sale securities are included in interest income and have been immaterial for each of the years presented. The cost of
securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Interest and dividends on securities classified as
available-for-sale are included in interest income.

¥




La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

)
. ]

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) ' .
) ‘
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses, are carried at
cost, which management believes approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.
Short-term investments are carried at fair value. None of the Company’s debt instruments that were outstanding at
December 31, 2006 have readily ascertainable market values; however, the carrying values are considered to
approx1mate their fair values. o '

Concentration of Risk X
| .

Cash, cash equwalents and short-term investments are financial instruments Wthh potentlally subject the Company
to concentrations of credit risk. The Company-deposits its cash in financial institutions. At times, such deposits may
be in excess of insured limits. The Company invests its excess cash in United States government-backed securities,
debt instruments of entities that it believes have strong credit ratings and money market funds. The Company has
established guidelines relative to the diversification of its cash investments and their maturities in an effort to
maintain safety and liquidity. These guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in
yields and interest rates. To date, the Company has not experienced any lmpamnent losses on its cash, cash
cqulvalents and short-term investments. . W !

+
‘

lmpmrment of Long-Lived Assets and Assets to Be Dlsposed Of

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairmem or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, if indicators of
impairment exist, the Company assesses the recoverability of the affected long-lived assets by determining whether
the carrying value of such assets can be recovered through the undiscounted future operating cash flows. If
impairment is indicated, the Company measures the amount of such impairment by comparing the carrying value of
the asset to the fair value of the asset and records the impairment as a reduction in the carrying value of the related
asset and a charge to operating results. Estimating the undiscounted future calsh flows associated with long-lived
assets requires judgment and assumptions that could differ materially from the actual results. Although the Company
bélieves its current and historical operating and cash flow losses are indicators of impairment, the Company believes
the future cash flows to be received from the long-lived assets will exceed the assets’ carrying value. The Company
has recognized approximately $0.1 million in impairment losses for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005. ‘ i

Property and Equipment - ; .

Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using.the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets (primarily five years). Leasehold improvements and equipment under capital leases are stated at
cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease term.

Property and equipment is comprised of the following (in thousands):
J - 0
i o ] ' . | December 31,

, o e 2006 2005

L.aboratory eqUIPMENL...... . v e SO UUUP U "% 6347 8 6477
Computer equipment and SOfWATe ... trieiseereenns et eereaeane "4,682 4,825
FUMILUTE AN FIXIUTES 1.viovvronresereoeeesresseeesseessessseesssessssesss st bees fecesenesess et ssissesassanss . 488 © 473
Leasehold improvements. ... ..o rerermrrrimcrricrecreec s rse et et aesas 3,268 3,184
ro - - ; 12,785 14,959

Less: Accumulated depreciation.............oooeiiiiiiiiiis s (12,452  (10,922)
: : ' ‘ $ 2333 % 4,037

‘Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1,840,000, $1,991,000, and
|$1 978,000, respectively.

t




La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Organization and.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
Patents

The Company has filed numerous patent applications with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and in
foreign countries. Legal costs and expenses incurred in connection with pending patent applications have been
capitalized. Costs related to successful patent applications are amortized using the straight-line method over the
lesser of the remaining useful life of the related technology or the remaining patent life, commencing on the date the
patent is issued. Total successful patent application costs and accurnulated amortization were $2,102,000 and
$734,000 at December 31, 2006 and $1,733,000 and $652,000 at December 31, 2005, respectively, Total pending
patent application costs were $1,761,000 and $1,915,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Capitalized
costs related to patent applications are charged to operations at the time a determination is made not to pursue such
applications. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $139,000,
$107,000, and $94,000, respectively, The expected future annual amortization expense of successful patent
applications for each of the succeeding five years is estimated to be approximately $167,000.

Accrued Clinical/Regulatory Expenses

The Company reviews and accrues clinical trial and regulatory-related expenses based on work performed, which
relies on estimates of total costs incurred based on patient enroliment, completion of studies and other events. The
Company follows this method since reasonably dependable estimates of the costs applicable to various stages of a
clinical trial can be made. Accrued clinical/regulatory costs are subject to revisions as trials progress to completion.
Revisions are charged to expense in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.
Historically, revisions have not resulted in material changes to research and development costs; however, a
modification in the protocol of a chmcal trial or cancellation of a trial could result in a charge to the Company’s
results of operations.

Share-Based Combensation ‘ !

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Bused Payment (“SFAS 123R”), which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 1237). SFAS 123R
requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made.-to
employees and directors, including stock options, restricted stock and purchases under the La Jolla Pharmaceutical
Company 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP™), based on estimated fair values. SFAS 123R
supersedes the Company’s previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257), and SFAS 123, for periods beginning in fiscal 2006. In
March 20035, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staft Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 107
(“SAB 107™), which discusses the interaction between SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations and
provides the SEC’s staff views regarding the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public companies.
The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107, related to the calculation of its expect term, in its adoption of
SFAS 123R.

The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application
of the accounting standard as of January 1, 2006, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2006. The Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the impact of SFAS
123R, In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R. Share-
based compensation expense recognized under SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
approximately $5,048,000. As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $8,120,000 of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested share-based payment awards granted under all equity compensation plans.
Total unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures. The Company
expects to recognize that cost over a weighted-average period of 1.2 years.

F-8
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‘ La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company |

| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements t

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) !

Prior:-to Jannary 1, 2006, the Company had adopted the disclosure-only provisior{ of SFAS 123. Accordingly, the
Company had-not previously recognized compensation expense, except for comppnsation expense related to stock
options granted to consultants and restricted stock granted to certain members of management.

Optrons or stock awards issued to non- employees other than non-employee dlrectors have been delermmed in
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force 96-18, dccounting for Equity Insrrumems That Are Issued 10 Other
Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Servicés. Deferred charges for options
granted to such non-employees are periodically remeasured as the options vest. In January 2006 and January 2005,
the Company granted a non-qualified stock option to purchase 1,000 shares of common stock to a consultant at an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the stock at the date of each grant. The Company recognized :
compensatlon expense for these stock optien grants of approximately $3,000 and $8,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
I i

The table below reflects net loss (in thousands) and basic and diluted net loss per share for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 assuming the Company determined compensatron expense in accordance with

SFAS 123: {
'1 . !
. Year Ended 1 Year Ended
! December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Net:loss—as reported $ (27,363) | _$ (40,544
Net'loss—pro forma $(31,206) ! $ (47,439 .
Basic and diluted net loss per share—as reported $ (tIn ! F (340 |
Basic and diluted net loss per share—pro forma $  (2.02) | $ (397 |

|
The a$sumptions used to calculate share-based compensation expense for 2005 and 2004 are discussed below.

SFAS| 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment alwards on the date of grant using
an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as
expense over the requisite service periods as share-based compensation expense m the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company s Consolidated Statement of
Operatlons included compensation expense for share-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as
of, December 31, 2005 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of
SFAS:123 and compensation expense for the share-based payment awards granted subsequent to December 31,

2005 Based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards granted prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R will continue to be
recogmzed using the straight-line single-option method of attributing the value of share-based compensation to
expense. Compensation expense for all share-based payment awards granted after December 31, 2005 is recognized
using the straight-line single-option method. As share-based compensation expenserrecogmzed in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the fiscal year 2006 is based on awards ultimately' expected to vest, share-based
compensatlon expense has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at
the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeltures differ from those estimates. In
the Company s pro forma information required under SFAS 123 for the periods pnor to fiscal 2006, the Company
accounited for forfeltures as they occurred.
As permmed by SFAS 123R, the Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as its method of
valuanon for stock options and purchases under the ESPP. The Black-Scholes model‘ was previously utilized for the
Company s pro forma information required under SFAS 123. The Company s determination of the fair value of
share- blased payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is aflfected by the Company’s stock
price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables
include, but are not limited to, the Company’s expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards and actual
and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors. Option-pricing models were developed for use in

esnmatmg the value of traded options that have no vesting or hedging restrictions and‘are fully transferable. Because
i

i
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

the employee and director stock options granted by the Company have characteristics that are significantly different
from traded options, and because changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the estimated value, in
management’s opinion the existing valuation models may not provide an accurate measure of the fair value of the
employee and director stock options granted by the Company. Although the fair value of the employee and director
stock options granted by the Company is determined in accordance with SFAS 123R using an option-pricing model,
that vatue may not be indicative of the fair value observed in a willing-buyer/willing-seller market transaction.

Valuation and Expense Information Under SFAS 123R and APB 25
' ‘ !

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense (in thousands) related to employee and director |
stock options, restricted stock and ESPP purchases under SFAS 123R for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Year Ended

‘ B December 31, 2006
Research and development ‘ $ 1,833 ]
General and administrative 3,215
'Share-based compensation expense included in operating expenses $ 5,048 |

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004 the Company estimated the fair value of each option grant
and ESPP purchase right on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

Options:
December 31,
_ 2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 4.8% 4.1% 3.9% ]
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility 113.7% 119.0%. 127.9% | .
Expected life (years) 59, 5.9 5.9
ESPP:
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
RRisk-free interest rate 4.8% 4.1% 3.4% }
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
WVolatility 46.4% 125.4% 129.1% |
Expected life (years) . 3 months 59 59

!

The weighted-avemge fair values of dptions granted were $3.92, $2.81 and $13.24 for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The weighted-average purchase prices of shares purchased through the ESPP
were $2.98, $3.04 and $7.57 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2605 and 2004, respectively.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the term of the Company’s
employee and director stock options and ESPP purchases. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s
history and expectation of dividend payouts. The Company has never paid dividends on its common stock and the
Company does not anticipate paying dividends in the fqreseeab]e future,

The Company used historical stock price volatility as the expected volatility assumption required in the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model consistent with SFAS 123R. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company used its historical
stock price volatility in accordance with SFAS 123 for purposes of its pro forma information. The selection of the
historical volatility approach was based on the availability of historical stock prices for the duration of the awards’
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1. Olrganization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued) i
b

expected term and the Company’s assessment that historical volatility is more representatwe of future stock price
trends than other available methods. i

The éxpected life of employee and director stock options represents the weighted&avera&e period the stock options
are expected to remain outstanding. Under the SAB 107 simplified method, the expected life calculated by the
Company for option grants made during the year ended December 31, 2006 was 5 8 years for the new and existing
employee grants, 6.1 years for the new officer grants, and 5.3 — 6.0 years for the dlrector grants. The expected life
for ESPP purchase rights represents the length of each purchase period. Beclause employees purchase. stock
quarterly, the expected term for ESPP purchase rights is three months for shares purchased during the year ended
December 31, 2006. Prior to the adoption of SFAS [23R on January 1, 2006, the Company utilized an estimate of
expected life for ESPP that was consistent with its estimate for options.

Becalse share-based compensation expense recogmzed in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for fiscal year
2006 lis based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123R
requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfe:tures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on hlstorlcal experience. In the Company’s
pro forma information required under SFAS 123 for the periods prior to fiscal 2006 the Company accounted for
forfertures as they occurred. i

Restrlicted Stock i

On December 14, 2003, the Company issued 83,518 shares of restricted stock to certam members of management in
exchange for services provided over the vesting period, pursuant to certain retentlon agreements dated October 6,
2005." The shares of restricted stock fully vested (i.e., the restrictions lapsed) one year from the date of grant and
were subject to repurchase by the Company until the one-year anniversary of the date of issuance. Pursuant to'a
separatron agreement dated March 17, 2006, the Company’s repurchase right with respect to 29,120 shares of
restncted stock granted to the former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer|immediately lapsed upon his
re51gnat10n on March 14, 2006. As such and in accordance with his retention agreement the Company accelerated
the veetmg of these shares of restricted stock. In addition, the remaining 54,398 !shares of restricted stock fully
vested, on December 14, 2006, the one-year anniversary of the date of 1ssuancel and therefore the Company’s
repurchase rrght with respect to these shares of restricted stock has lapsed. '

On March 15, 2006, the Company issued 20,000 shares of restricted stock to the new Chalrman of the Board in
exchange for services provided over the vesting period. The shares of restricted stock vested with respect to 10,000
shares 'six months after the issuance date and will vest with respect to the remammg 10,000 shares upon the first
anniversary of the issuance date. On September 15, 2006, the vesting provisions with respect to 10,000 shares of
resmctpd stock were met and therefore the Company’s repurchase rights lapsed. }
. \

In December 2006, the Company issued an additional 3,600 shares of restricted stock to the Chairman of the Board
in accordance with the Chairman Compensation Policy approved by the Board of: Directors on March 14, 2006
regarding tax liability associated with the restricted stock issued on March 15, 2006 and vested on September 15,
2006. All of these additional shares of restricted stock immediately vested on the date of issuance.
In accordance with SFAS 23R, the Company recognized approximately $381,000 i in compensation expense for the
restrlcted stock grants noted above for the year ended December 31, 2006, which includes compensation expense for
the acceleration of vesting. -
Reverse Stock Split : ‘ |j

? ~ |
On December 12, 2005, the Company’s stockholders approved a one-for-five reverse stock split of the Company’s

common stock, effective as of the close of business on December 21, 2005. All share and per share figures presented

herein have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split, except for shares of authorized common stock.
i

!
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Net Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the periods in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share and SAB No. 98. Basic earnings per share
(“EPS™) is calculated by dividing the net income or loss by the' weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for the period, without consideration for common share equivalents. Diluted EPS is computed by
dividing the net income or loss by the weighted-average number of common share equivalents outstanding for the
period determined using the treasury-stock method. For purposes of this calculation, stock options, common stock
subject to repurchase by the Company, and warrants are considered to be common stock equivalents and are only
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when their effect is dilutive.

Because the Company has incurred a net loss for all three years presefited in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, stock options, common stock subject to repurchase and warrants are not included in the computation of
net loss per share because their effect is anti-dilutive. The shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share
represent the weighted-average common shares outstanding, reduced by the weighted-average unvested common
shares subject to repurchase, The number of weighted-average unvested common shares subject to repurchase for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were 8,000 and 4,119, respectively. There were no
unvested common shares subject to repurchase for the year ended December 31, 2004. -

Comprehensive Loss

In accordance with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehenswe Income (Loss), unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are included in other comprehensive income (loss).
[l

Recently Issued Accounting Standards .
On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20.and FASB Statement No. 3 (“SFAS 154”). SFAS 154 changed the requirements
for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 applies to all voluntary changes
in accounting principles and changes required by ‘an accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the
pronouncement does not include specific transition methods. The adoption of SFAS 154 did not affect the
Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition as of and for the year ended December 31,
2006. Its effects on future periods will depend on the nature and 51g,n1ﬁcance of any future accounting changes
subject to SFAS 154. : »
In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
in the financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48
provides guidance on the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006 and is required to be adopted by the Company in fiscal 2007. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of this standard on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

- t . B
In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued SAB No. 108 (“SAB 108"). SAB 108
addresses the process and diversity in practice of quantifying financial statement misstatements resulting in the
potential build up of improper amounts on the balance sheet. SAB 108 is effective for annual periods ending after
November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations and financial position as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006.

1
v
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l

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) . . -
In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 establishes a
* framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair. value measurements The changes to current
practlce resulting from the application of SFAS 157 relate to the definition of | fair value, the methods .used to
measure fair value, and the expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.|SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after-November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fi sca! years. The Company does not
currently believe that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have a material 1mpact on its consohdated results of operatlons
and f'||nanC|aI condition. , , o | _ S .
In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for lIu‘mxmcmfl' Assets and Financial
Lmb:lrnes - Includmg an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits entities to
choose to measure many financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items
for wh:ch the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS |159 is effective for fiscal years
begmmng after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS 159 on lts
consolldated results of operations and financial condmon

|
2. Cas’lh Equivalents and Short-term Investments _ l ) P

The fdllowing is a summary of the Company’s available-for-sale securities (in thousands):' )

I
|

. . Gross! " Gross .

! : Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized ' *Estimated Fair '

. Cost' "  Gains| Losses Value
December 31, 2006 . l
Money market ACCOUNTS......couevrrnrerereesen s nsssesnsnesnsneas $ 2,189 $— $— . % 2,189
Umted States corporate debt securities.............. e rerees 12,024 — — 12,024
Govemment-asset-backed securities................. rererenire e 27,056 W — 27,056

= $ 41,269 F—i. 3 — S 41,269

i " . o .

! Gross ! ) Gross

‘ ' * Amortized ~ Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair

. T - Cost . Gains |. . Losses © Value
December 31, 2005 :
MoneyMarket ACCOUNES ... . v ririrserirmi s sies $ 5,337 §—! $— $ 5,337
United States corporate debt SECUTIHES ....ouvevrrcreeicrenrinneennes 12,821 — — 12,821
Govemrnent-asset backed securities.........coouveen.. ererreesinrereenns 53,645 . — | — 53,645

$ 71,803  §$—| $— . % 71,803

|

The amomzed cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
matunty Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $2,189,000 and $5,337,000,
respectllvely, of securities classified as available-for-sale as the Company expects to sell them in order to support its
current operatlons regardless of their maturity date. As of December 31, 2006, avallab]e for-sale securities and cash
equwalents of $14,213,000 mature in one year or less and $27,056,000 are due after one year. Securities that have a
matunt)ir date greater than one year have their mterest rate reset periodically within time periods not exceedmg
92 days!

3. Commitments

Leases |

{ . . .
In July 1992, the Company entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for the rental of its research and
developmem laboratories and clinical manufacturing facilities. In October 1996, tne Company entered into an
addmonal non-cancelable operating lease for additional office space. In 2004, the Company exercised its options to
extend these leases until July 2009.
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
3. Commitments (continued)

In September 2002, the Company entered into an additional non-cancelable operating lease for additional research
space. In July 2006, the Company extended the term of this lease until December 2006. This lease expired on
December 31,2006. ' ’

In July 2003, the Company entered into a capital [ease agreement for $111,000 to finance the purchase of certain
equipment. The agreement was secured by the equipment, bore interest at 7.00% per annum, and was payable in
quarterly installments of principal and interest of approximately $15,000 for eight quarters. The final quarterly
instaliment was made in March 2005,

Annua! future minimum lease payments as of December } 1, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Bt Operating
Years ended December 31, Leases
20T bbb e aras et eereteeteaberstra s te et e b ta st e e nes st essnensnntensaear s $ 801
2008 ettt e e et e e ee e e sese et e etbe s et e e se et e e s e R ae s e e ae ke A e e A rd e re et hdaeae e et e e aaaresarerbe s 898
2000 e et tsrese s e e a st aeaessateenamanatnteeeeeesenere et ededeebedeee I S e 48e e b S e e bEat s e A s s e Ra e A e e s et 542
2011 A0 TREEE-RET ooooooooooooooooeooooo oo se oo sesessses s meneneeeeeeeeeseeeeneeee e semeses e se e 17
FOAL e vverereriir et cete et et eee et e eeee et e e e e e s e e e e e ees s ten e beseeere et e et e s e a e R e e h e EE Ee bR es e Ra s a s e e nat e s aenrenaaes 3 229

Rent expense under all operating leases totaled $1,065,000, $1,046,000 and $1,205,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. There was no equipment under capital leases included in property
and equipment as of December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Purchase Obligations

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had total Epurchase obligations of approximately $2,856,000, which
primarily consisted of non-cancelable purchase commitments with third-party manufacturers of materials to be used
in the production of Riquent. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately $964,000 of the total purchase
obligations were not included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company intends to use its
current financial resources to fund its obligations under these purchase commitments.

4, Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of the notes payable obligations that are secured by the financed equipment of
approximately $1,062,000 as of December 31, 2006:

Original
. . Note

o . Interest \ . Amount
Date of Note Rate (%) : Monthly Payments (in thousands)
September 26, 2003 : 8.27 $4,000 for 42 months $ 150
December 18, 2003 8.27 $2,000 for 42 months 83
March 31, 2004............ 8.27 First 36 months at $35,000; last six months at $4,000 . 189
June 25, 2004............... 8.77 First 36 months at $4,000; last six months at $2,000 132
September 28, 2004 8.44 First 36 months at $3,000; last six months at $1,000 157
December 28, 2006 10.56 First 36 months at $8,000; last 12 months at $3,000 263
' $ __ 974
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4, L(iing-Term Debt (continued) i .

Annual future minimum notes payable payments as of December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

. . : © . Notes
Years ended December 31, ' ) Payable
2007 .. s SO SYURUUUUUBTU TRV e et $ 209
2008 oo e ettt ettt seean] N e, 94
2009 cieoeeceeene ettt e e foeoeresie e resaresenssasereseeos e ereerscssmerermene e rmssssrens 92
2010t e e e v re et s ae e r e s e re e renes eererneeee e 38
Tota]: .............. oeeereeeieteimeeineesneererereeseentsorbasbetre iR estatetas e bt e Aa s e be e beaabeenbenabesnbennrernnereas _ 433
Less amount repreSenting itEreSt ...........ovueeureeereeeeeeseceseesessesesesseseesseresseseeseesens . — (54)
Present value of net minimum notes payable payments ~ 379
Less current portion............., e eeeerer e e e e are et at e e et ae b e e ke e s e et nrrenre e e raeeresartran (183)
Noncurrent portion 0f notes payable ... § 196

5. Res!tructuring Charges ) ' RN
1 H .
In March 2005, the Company restructured its operations in order to reduce costs. In hccordance with SFAS No. 146,
Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities, the Company recorded total restructuring charges
of approximately $1,488,000 in connection .with the termination of 60 employees (approximately $1,174,000), the
impairment of certain long-term assets (approximately $152,000), and retention payments for key executives
(approximately $162,000). This action followed an announcement by the Company in March 2005 that, based on the
outcome of a meeting with the FDA, the Company’s lead drug candidate, quuem was unlikely to receive
accelerated approval under the FDA’s Subpart H regulatlon . :

\ : : .

In ﬁscal 2005, approximately $991,000 of the total restructuring charges was included in research and development
expense and approximately $497,000 was included in general and administrative expense. The restructuring plan
was completed in September 2005 and actual total charges paid were approxnmately $1,336,000. The non-cash
charge;of $152,000 for write-downs of impaired assets as a result of the restructurmg was included in research and

development expense in the first quarter of 2005.
6. Stockholders’ Equity e

Preferi'ed Stock

I
As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors is authorized to issue 8,000,000 shares of preferred
stock with a par value of $0.01 per share, in one or more series. ‘
The Company’s Certificate of Designation filed with the Secretary of State of the, State of Delaware designates
100,000 shares of preferred stock as nonredeemable Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (“Series A
Preferred Stock™). Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Stockholder Rights Plan, in the event of liquidation, each
share of Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to receive, subject to certain restrictions, a preferential liquidation
payment of $1,000 per share plus the amount of accrued unpaid dividends. The Series A Preferred Stock is subject
1o certain anti-dilution adjustments, and the holder of each share is entitled to 1,00(:votes, subject to adjustments.
Cumulative quarterly dividends of the greater of $0.25 or, subject to certain adjustments, 1,000 times any dividend
declared on shares of common stack, are payable when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors, from funds
legally available for this purpose- ;

L

|
Warrants
In connection with the December 2005 private placement, the Company issued warrants to purchase 4,399,992
shares of the Company’s common stock. The warrants were immediately exercisable upon grant, have an exercise
price of $5.00 per share and remain exercisable for five years. As of December 31, 2006, ali of the warrants were
outstanding and 4,399,992 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance upon exercise of the warrants.
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
6. Stockholders’ Equity {continued)
Restricted Stock , : ‘ o

On December 14, 20035, the Company issued 83,518 shares of restricted stock to certain members of management in
exchange for services provided over the vesting period, pursuant to certain retention agreements dated October 6,
2005. The shares of restricted stock fully vested (i.e., the restrictions lapsed) one year from the date of grant and
‘were subject to repurchase by the Company until the one-year anniversary of the date of issuance. Pursuant to a
separation agreement dated March 17, 2006, the Company’s repurchase right with respect to 29,120 shares of
restricted stock granted to the former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer immediately lapsed upon his
resignation on March 14, 2006. As such and in accordance with his retention agreement, the Company accelerated
the vesting of these shares of restricted stock. In addition, the remaining 54,398 shares of restricted stock fully
-vested on December 14, 2006, the one-year anniversary of. the date of issuance, and therefore the Company’s
repurchase right with respect to these shares of restricted stock has lapsed.

On March 15, 2006, the Company issued 20,000 shares of restricted stock to the new Chairman of the Board in
exchange for services provided over the vesting period. The shares of restricted stock vested with respect to 10,000
shares six months after the issuance date and will vest with respect to thie remaining 10,000 shares upon the first
anniversary of the issuance date. On September 15, 2006, the vesting provisions with respect to 10,000 shares of
restricted stock were met and therefore the Company’s repurchase rights fapsed.

In December 2006, the Company issued an additional 3,600 shares of restricted stock to the Chairman of the Board
in accordance with the Chairman Compensation Policy approved by the Board of Directors on March 14, 2006
regarding tax liability associated with the restricted stock issued on March 15, 2006 and vested on September 15,
2006. All of these additional shares of restricted stock immediately vested on the date of issuance.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, the Company recognized approximately $381,000 in compensation expense for the
restricted stock grants noted above for the year ended December 31, 2006, which includes compensation expense for
the acceleration of vesting.

In addition, the total fair value of the restricted stock grants vested in 2006 was approximately $352,000 of which
approximately $12,000 was recognized in 2005 and approximately $340,000 was recognized in 2006.

Stock Option Plans

In June 1994, the Company adopted the La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1994
Plan”) under which, as amended, 1,640,000 shares of common stock (post-reverse stock split) were authorized for
issuance. The 1994 Plan expired in June 2004 and thete were 1,109,329 options outstandmg under the 1994 Plan as
of December 31, 2006. ‘

In May 2004, the Company adopted the La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004
Plan”) under which, as amended, 4,160,000 shares of tommon stock (post-reverse stock split) have been authorized
for issuance. The 2004°Plan provides for the grant of incentive and non-qualified stock options, as well as other
share-based payment awards, to employees, directors, consultants and advisors of the Company with up to a 10 year
contractual life and various vesting periods as determined by the Company’s compensation commitiee or the board
of directors, as well as automatic fixed grants to non-employee directors of the Company. As of December 31, 2006,
there were a total of 3,193,050 options outstanding and 10,000 unvested shares of restricted stock granted under the
2004 Plan and 855,285 shares remained available for future grant.
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6. Stockholders® Equity (continued) i

' !
A summary of the Company’s stock option activity (including shares of restricted stock) and related data follows:

Outstanding Options

. Options Weighted-
! . Available  Number of Average
| For Grant Shares Exercise Price
Balance at December 31, 2003 ............. teeessteessriestessvessbseesssisnresraressearar 76,376 1,495,243 $ 2396
Additional shares authonzed .............. isssteessssiesssssssesesetmssarareeraranrreeenn 400,000 —_ —
GIANLEd ..o ettt r s s e er e e emr e eme b es bbb et arbeaen (361,929) 361,929 $ 1483
EXEICISEA ....rviiisiecrcicciii ettt sttt se e aen st ssa e sssastscane v — 972) § 1241
CanCelled ..ot et b ee e eaee 60,698 (60,698) § 21.32
EXPIFEA oottt ee et bbbttt (44,020) — —
Balance at December 31,2004 .........oooiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e 131,125 1,795,502 $ 2222
Additional shares authorized..........cccoeeeeeicececece e 3,760,000 — : —
L€ T W et ete et e ee et e er e e eteeneeeteeneny et eaae (743,981) 743,981 $ 335
Restricted Stock Zranted..........ocuiveiviurieiereoeece oot eeeeeeessssassssesassssenes (83, 518) — ‘ —
EXEICISA oo e ettt o - {3,106y & 237
Cancelled ..ol e eteeeeereeeriet e ra s raa s ebaen e e tennens 388,349 (388,349) § 20.15
EXPired ....coooviiioieiiccrce ettt at et eeeeesebeenararaeaes (261,744) — —
Balance at December3l 2005 .................................................................. 3,190,231 2,148,028 $ 16.09
Granted .. e (2,450,745) - 2,450,745 - 8 4.58
Restncted stock granted ......................................................................... (23, 600) : _ —
EXETCISEA 11.vivvrivivieeiimereerrriaitssistsiesssesess e sasstesassrnenessnensssnersssssrissnsasnases (56,012) $ 225
CanCelled ........covververeeereesrrn e teetesbessbe e st s e e s e e e sns 240, 382 (240,382) $ 1404
EXPITE ..ottt s et et s b e e sea e e r e ema s anas (100,983) — —
Balance at December 31, 2000 ... 855,285 4,302,379 $ 9.83

As of December 31, 2006, options exercisable have a weighted-average remaining contractual term of 6.3 years. The
total intrinsic value of stock option exercises, which is the difference between the exercise price and closing price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of exercise, during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
was $74,000, $5,000 and $4,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 the total intrinsic value, which is the
difference between the exercise price and closing price of the Company s common stock of options outstanding and
exercisable was $245,000 and $187,000, respectively. .

: !
! Years Ended December 31,
: 2006 . 2005 2004
' Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
' Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise - Exercise
Options Price Options Price - Options Price
Exercisable at end of L5 1 RO 1,859,139 §-16.27 1,276,090 $ 22.24 1,213,889 § 2425
Weighted-average fair value of : . o :
options granted during the vear ......... $ 392 $§ . 281 -8 1324
|
; !
Il ' |
} |
+ l .
.
i
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6. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Exercise prices and weighted-average remaining contractual lives for the options outstanding (excluding shares of
~ restricted stock) as of December 31, 2006 were:

Weighted- Weighted-
Average . Average
Remaining Weighted- Exercise
Contractual Average : Price of
Options Range of Life Exercise Options Options
Qutstanding Exercise Prices (in years) Price Exercisable Exercisable
421,323 $172 -8 323 7.81 $ 249 258,567 $ 231
407,300 $325-8%399 9.43 $ 378 _ 21,500 $ 340
360,809 5403 -8 430 8.78 5 420 217,096 $ 420
1,086,647 $ 446 929 3 446 249,703 $ 446
811,500 $ 490 - % 5.26 9.20 $ 526 — §E —
362,552 $ 538 - $15.75 6.39 $14.32 . 264,986 $1423
441,396 $15.95 — $2545 4.58 $22.12 436,435 $22.15
410,852 $25.65 - $60.31 479 $34.35 410,852 $34.35
4,302,379 $ 1.72 — $60.31 7.94 59383 1,859,139 $16.27

At December 31, 2006, the Company has reserved 5,157,604 shares of common stock for future issuance upon
exercise of options granted or to be granted under the 1994 and 2004 Plans.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Effective August 1, 1995, the Company adopted the ESPP under which, as amended, 600,000 shares of common
stock are reserved for sale to eligible employees, as defined in the ESPP. Employees may purchase common stock
under the ESPP every three months (up to but not exceeding 10% of each employee’s base salary, or hourly
compensation, and any cash bonus paid, subject to certain limitations) over the offering period at 85% of the fair
market value of the common stock at specified dates. The offering period may not exceed 24 months. During the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 80,017 and 94,650 shares of common stock were issued under the ESPP,
respectively. As of December 31, 2006, 431,982 shares of common stock have been issued under the ESPP and
168,018 shares of common stock are available for future issuance.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2008 2004

Weighted-average fair value of Employee Stock Purchase Plan purchases .............. $ 298 $ 304 % 757

Stockholder Rights Plan

The Company has adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan”), which was amended in July 2000,
December 2005 and March 2006. The Rights Plan provides for a dividend of one right (a “Right”) to purchase
fractions of shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock for each share of the Company’s common stock.
Under certain conditions involving an acquisition by any person or group of 15% or more of the common stock (or
in the case of State of Wisconsin Investment Board, 20% or more, Essex Woodland Health Ventures Fund V, L.P,,
29% or more, Frazier Healthcare V, L.P., 19% or more, or Alejandro Gonzalez, 19% or more), the Rights permit the
holders (other than the 15% holder, or, in the case of State of Wisconsin Investment Board, 20% holder, Essex
Woodland Health Ventures Fund V, L.P., 29% holder, Frazier Healthcare V, L.P., 19% holder, or Alejandro
Gonzalez, 19% holder) to purchase the Company’s common stock at a 50% discount upon payment of an exercise
price of $30 per Right. In addition, in the event of certain business combinations, the Rights permit the purchase of
the common stock of an acquirer at a 50% discount. Under certain conditions, the Rights may be redeemed by the
Board of Directors in whole, but not in part, at a price of $0.001 per Right. The Rights have no voting privileges and
are attached to and automatically trade with the Company’s common stock. The Rights expire on December 2, 2008.
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7. 401(k) Plan

' !

The Company has established a 401(k) defined contribution retirement plan (the “401(k) Plan™), which was
amended in May 1999 to cover all employees. The 401(k) Plan was also amended in December 2003 to increase the
volun:tary employee contributions from a maximum of 20% to 50% of annual compensation (as defined). This
increase was effective beginning January 1, 2004. The Company does not match employee contributions or
otherwise contribute to the 401(k) Plan. . f

| I

8. Income Taxes 1

At December 31, 2006, the Company had federal and California income tax netyoperating loss carryforwards of
approxlmately $275,445,000 and $144,337,000, respectively. The difference between the federal and California tax
loss carryforwards is primarily attributable to the capitalization of research and development expenses for California
income tax purposes. The Company also had federal and California research tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $14,033,000 and $7,795,000, respectively. The federal net operatmg loss and research tax credit

carryforwards will continue to expire through 2026 unless previously utilized. The California net operating loss will

begin to expire in 2009 unless previously utilized. .

1

Pursuzlmt to Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code, annual use of the Company’s net operating loss and

research tax credit carryforwards may be limited if a cumulative charige in owne'rshlp of more than 50% occurs
Wlthm a three-year period. 1

[

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets are shown below (in thpusands):
| ' |

i

December 31,

3
| 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: E
Net operating loss carryforwards.........ccccoovveeivnerneninnen, e 3 1047058 92,892
Research and development credits......ooviiiiiieinice et 19,100 17,033
Capitalized research and development...........o.ovvniiiiiiciic e eenenee 7,691 5,558
Total deferred tax assets *

................................................................................................ 131,496 115,483
INET AEfEITEA LAX ASBRES ..vvviviiserereeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeteeeeseeeeteserrsesresssratssabesssetesaresannesannesaraeenss 131,496 115,483

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets _ (131,496)  (115,483)
Net deferTed tAXeS ... sttt rane e . — $ —

Signiﬁeant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 retate primarily to
its net operating loss and lax credit carry-forwards. A valuation allowance of $131,496,000 and $115,483,000 as of

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, have been recognized to offset the deferred tax assets as realization of
such assets is uncertain.

|
i 1
! 1

z |
L |
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La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
9, Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 (in thousands éxcept per share amounts): '

Quarters Ended
’ Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2006 '

Expenses:
. Research and development........... eieeeseseareeseisinmneseeneeseeiatsbbssra s ennenaen $ 7890.% 8,187 % 7687 § 9,174

(General and administrative .... 3,725 1,900 1,546 2,116
L0583 from OPErations .........ccumersesessesccnresscnecscsisssssssnnnns Cieeeens JR _ (11,615)  (10,087) (9,233) (11,290}
FEREST INCOME, MEL...orrroecsscssssssessssssrssss e e 747 742 695 " 596
NEL 0SS cevvrenierrrereeeeereemeree e et erneaneaaeens e $ (10,868) § (9,345) §  (8,538) § (10,694)
Basic and diluted net loss per share e eee e eneenee e $ (033 % (029 § (0.26) $ (0.33)

. ' , . '
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share ........occc..co.. ] 32,480 32,503 32,534 32,660
2005

Expenses: _

Research and development............oouvvreeseeessereeecioessussniones e $ 7348 § 5182 $ 499 $ 5099

General and administrative .... . 1,908 1,235 1,081 1,181
Loss from operations .......c...... (9,256) 6,417) (6,050) (6,280)
Interest (€XPENSe) INCOME, NEL .....cimeriimmrremessiinasisiennsntrnsesersansmses e senaens 114 163 123 240
INEL L0SS cevvovcossrsessisesssessresssrassasemsssessseresseesssoseseesass e s et $ (9,14 % (6254) % (5927) §  (6,040)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ....... ST s v $ (066) § (042) 3 {0.40) § (0.33)
Shares used in cdmt)uting basic and diluted net loss per share (1)............. 13,881 14,781 14,808 18,274
) Shares have been adjusted to reflect the one-for-five reverse stock split effective December 21, 2005.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws (2) ’
Form of Common Stock:Certificate (3)

Rights Agreement, dated as of December 3, 1998, betweerlt the Company and
Amerlcan Stock Transfer & Trust Company (4)

Amendment No. 1 to the Rights Agreement dated as of July 21 2000, between the
Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (5)

Amendment No. 2 to the Rights Agreement dated as of December 14, 2005, between
the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (6)

Amendment No. 3 to the Rights Agreement dated as of March 1, 2006, between the
Company and Amerlcan Stock Transfer & Trust Company (1)

4

Form of Indemmf catton Ag,reement (7)*

Industrial Real Estate Lease effective July 27 1992, by and between the Company
and BRE Properties, Inc. (8) | .

First Amendment to "Lease, dated March'15,.1993, by and{between the Company and
BRE Properties, Inc. (8)

Second Amendment to Lease, dated July 18, 1994, by and between the Company and
BRE Propertles Inc. (9) _ |

Thlrd Amendment to Lease, dated January 26, 1995 by atltd between the Company
and BRE Properties, Inc. (IO)

o

Fourth Amendmem to Lease, dated July 8, 2004, by and between the Company and

EOP-Industrial Portfolio, LLC (1 l)

Building Lease Agreement, effective November 1, 1996, by and between the
Company and WCB [1-S BRD Limited Partnershtp (12) '

1

. I :
First Amendment to Lease, dated May 4,200 l; by and between the Company and
Spieker Properties, L.P. (11}
5 IS

Second Amendment to Lease dated July 8, 2004, by and ibetween the Company and
EQOP- Industrla] Portfolio, LLC (11)

La Jolla Pharmaceuttcal Company 1994 Stock Incentive Plan {Amended and Restated
as of May 16 2003) (13)*

La Jolla Pharrnaceutlcal Company 1995 Employee Stock {Purchase Plan (Amended
and Restated as of May 18, 2006) (33)* l

, ! .
La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (31)*

l
" Form of Option Grant under the La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company 2004 Equlty

Incentive Plan (15)*

|

Reserved. T - Ty :
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Exhibit Number Description

10.15 ~ Reserved.

10.16 Steven B. Engle Employment Agreement (8)*

10.17 Amendment No. | to Steven B. Engle Employment Agreement (16)*

10.18 Amendment No. 2 to Steven B! Engle Employment Agreement (17)*

10.19 Amendment No. 3 to Steven B. Engle Employment Agreement (13)*

10.20 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2006, by and
between the Company and Matthew Linnik, Ph.D. (1)*

10.21 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2006, by and
between the Company and Bruce Bennett, Jr. (1)*

10.22 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated Februafy 23, 2006, by and -
between the Company and Josefina Elchico (1)*

10.23 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2006, by and
between the Company and Paul Jenn, Ph.D. (1)*

10.24 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2006, by and
between the Company and Theodora Reilly (1)*

10.25 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2006, by and
between the Company and Gail Sloan (1)*

10.26 Supplement to employment offer letter for Kenneth R. Heilbrunn (18)*

10,27 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and
Steven B. Engle (19)* )

10.28 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and .
Matthew Linnik, Ph.D. (19)*

10.29- Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and Bruce
Bennett (19)*

10.30 Reten'uon Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and
Josefina T. Elchico {19)*

10.31 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and Paul
Jenn, Ph.D. (19)* .

10.32 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005 by and between the Company and
Theodora Reilly (19)*

10.33 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and Gail
Sloan (19)*

10.34 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and
Andrew Wiseman, Ph.D. (19)* '

10.35 Retention Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, by and between the Company and Lisa
Koch (32)*

10.36 Underwriting Agreement, dated January 28, 2005, by and between the Company and

Pacific Growth Equities, LLC (20)
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Company and General Electric Capital Corporation (25)

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of February 19, 2004, between the Company and
Pacific Growth Equities, LLC (21)

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2003, between the Company and

.. Pacific Growth Equities, LLC (22)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 6, 2005, between the Company and the
initial purchasers { 19) . |

Form of Registration Rights Agteement dated January 2002 between the Company

and the initial purchasers (23) !

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 5j 2001, berween the
Company and the initial purchasers (24) ;. - '

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 19, 2000 between the Company
and the initial purchasers (24) . , '

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated February lO 2000 between the
Company and the 1n1tlaI purchasers (24} -

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 6, 2005 between the Company
and the initial purchasers (19)

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement, dated January 2002, between the Company and
the initial purchasers (23) .

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement, dated February 5, 2001, between the Company -
and the mmal purchasers (24)

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement, dated July 19, 2000 between the Company and
the initial purchasers (24)

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement, dated February 10, 2000, between the Company
and the initial purchasers (24)

Master Security Agreement, effective as of September 6, 2002, by and between the

Prom'issory Note, dated as of December 28, 2006, by and between the C_ompany and
General Electric Capital Corporation

Promissory Note, dated as of September 28, 2004, by and btletween lhe Company and

General Electric Capital Corporatlon (26) \

Promissory Note, dated as June 25, 2004, between the Company and General Electnc
Capital Corporation (11) o _ , ’

Promissory Note, dated as March 31, 2004, between the Company and, General
Electric Capital Corporation (27)

Promissory Note, dated as of December 18, 2003, between the Company and General
Electric Capltal Corporation (28)

Promlssory Note, dated as of September 26, 2003, between the Company and General
Electric Capital Corporation (24} '

Promissory Note, dated as of June 27, 2003, between the Co'mpany and General
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Electric Capital Corporation (13)

Promissory Note, dated as of April 23, 2003, between the Company and General
Electric Capital Corporation (29)

Promissory Note, dated as of December 30, -2b02, between the Company and General
Electric Capital Corporation (29)

Amendment to Promissory Note, dated as of September 27, 2002, by and between the
Company and General Electric Capital Corporation (23)

Promissory Note, dated as of September 26, 2002, by and between the Company and
General Electric Capital Corporation (25)

Employment Agreement, dated March 15, 2006, by and between the Company and
Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D. (30)*

Separation Agreement, dated Maréh 17, 2006, by and between the Company and
Steven B. Engle (30)*

Employment Offer Letter, dated July 10, 2006 and executed July 14, 2006, by and
between the Company and Michael Tansey, M.D. (34)*

Employment Agreement, dated December 4, 2006, by and between the Company and
Michael Tansey, M.D.*

Subsidiaries of La Jolla Pharméceutical Company (15)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb;ines-Ok]ey Act' of 2002
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(1)
)
(3
C)
()

(6)
(7
)
®

This exhibit is a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2000 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-3 (Registration No. 333-131246)
filed January 24, 2006 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (Registration No. 000-24274} filed
December 4, 1998 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 26, 2001 and incorporated by
reference herein. The changes effected by the Amendment are also reflected in the Amendment to
Application for Registration on Form 8-A/A filed on January 26,2001. - - :
Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2005 and incorporated
by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2005 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-76480) filed
June 3, 1994 and incorporated by reference herein. '

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1994 and
incorporated by reference herein.
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Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1995
and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
1996 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8K filed May 2(, 2005 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the f'lscal year ended December 31,
1999 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 7, 2005 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 28, 2005 and incorporated by
reference herein,

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 20, 2004 and incorporated
by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 12, 2003 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 16, 2002 and incorporated by
reference herein. '

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2002 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2004 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10 -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004
and incorporated by reference herein,

Previously filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fot the fiscal year ended December 31,
2003 and incorporated by reference herein,

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003

" and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 20, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005 and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein.

Previously filed with the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 18, 2006 and incorporated by
reference herein.
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Executive Officers and
Key Employees
Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Assistant Secretary
Michael J.B. Tansey, M.D., Ph.D.
Executive Vice President and
Chief Medical Officer
Josefina T. Elchico
Vice President of Quality Qperations
Luke Seikkula
Vice President of Manufacturing
Gail A, Sloan, CPA
Vice President of Finance and Secretary
Matthew D. Linnik, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President and
Chief scientific Officer
Paul C. Jenn, Ph.D.
Vice President of Product Development
Lisa Koch Hulle, RAC, MTOPRA
Vice President of Regulatory Affairs and
Project Management
Andrew Wiseman, Ph.D.
Senior Director of Investor Relations

Board of Directors
Craig R. Smith, M.D.
Chairman of the Board
President of Williston Consulting LLC
Deirdre Y. Gillespie, M.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Assistant Secretary
Thomas H. Adams, Ph.D.
Chief Technology Officer of
Iris International, Inc.
Founder and Chairman Emeritus of
Genta, Inc.
Robert A. Fildes, Ph.D.
Former President of SB2, inc.
Stephen M. Martin
CEQ Partner of Hi Tech Partners
Managing Partner of Merritt
Capital Services
Nader J. Naini
Genéral Partner of Frazier
Healthcare Ventures
Martin P Sutter
Founding Managing Director of Essex
Woodlands Health Ventures
James N. Topper, M.D., Ph.D.
General Partner of Frazier
Healthcare Ventures
Frank E. Young, M.D,, Ph.D.
Former Commissioner of the United States
Food and Drug Administration
Partner of Essex Woodlands
Health Ventures
CEO of Cosmos Alliance
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Company Address
6455 Nancy Ridge Drive
San Diego, California 92121
Phone: 858-452-6600
Facsimile: 858-554-0234

Transfer Agent
American 5tock Transfer
& Trust Company (New York, New York)

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
(San Diego, California)

Legal Counsel
Goodwin Procter, LLP
{Boston, Massachusetts)

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
The annual meeting of stockholders will be
held at 8:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 24, 2007
at the corporate headquarters of La Jolla
Pharmaceutical Company.

SEC Filings

A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments
to those reports filed with or furnished te the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant
to Section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Exchange Act
of 1934 are available without charge by
calling our Investor Relations department

at (858) 452-6600, by writing to Investor
Relations, La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company,
6455 Nancy Ridge Drive, San Diego, California
92121, or by visiting our Web site at
www.ljpc.com as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file or
furnish the reports with or to the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Common Stock Information
Qur common stock trades on the Nasdag
Global Market under the symbol “LIPC.”

Forward-Looking Statements

The forward-looking statements in this report
involve significant risks and uncertainties, and
a number of factors, both foreseen and
unforeseen, could cause actual results to
differ materially from our current expectations.
Forward-looking statements include those
that express a plan, belief, expectation,
estimation, anticipation, intent, contingency,
future development or similar expression. The
analyses of clinical results of Riguent®, our
drug candidate for the treatment of

W'WW.I'pc.com

systemic lupus erythematosus (“lupus”),

- and any other drug candidate that we may
" develop, including the results of any trials

or models that are ongoing or that we may
initiate in the future, could result in a finding

. that these drug candidates are not effective

in large patient populations, do not provide

. a meaningful clinical benefit, or may reveal a
" potential safety issue requiring us to develop

new candidates, The results from our current
clinical studies of Riquent also may not be
sufficient to obtain regulatory clearance to
market Riquent either in the United States or
any other country, and we may be required

" to conduct additional clinical studies. There

can be no assurance, however, that we wil!

. have the necessary resources to complete any

current or future trials or that any such trials

" will sufficiently demonstrate the safety and
- efficacy of Riquent. Additional risk factors
+ include the uncertainty and timing of: our

clear need to raise capital to complete our
current clinical studies; obtaining required
regulatory approvals, including delays

~ associated with any approvals that we may

obtain; timely supply of drug product for
clinical trials and for possible commercialization;
our ability to pass all necessary regulatory
inspections; successfully marketing and selling
our products, whether directly or through

" collaborative relationships; our ability to
- make use of the orphan drug designation

for Riquent; future profitability; and our
dependence on patents and other proprietary

© rights, as wel! as possible actions by third

parties against us based on their own intel-
lectual property rights. Readers are cautioned
to not place undue reliance upon forward-
looking statements, which speak only as

of the date hereof, and we undertake no

- obligation to update forward-locking

statements to reflect events or circumstances
occurring after the date hereof. Interested

, Parties are urged to review the risks described

below under the “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere
in this report and in other reports and
registration statements filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission from

. time to time.

La Jolla Pharmaceutical Company
Financial Snapshot

Stock Listing/Symbol:

Nasdag: LUPC

Shares Outstanding as of 3/15/07:
32,840,505

Stock Price as of 12/31/06:

' $3.03
. Market Cap as of 12/31/06:
- $99.1 million

Cash Position as of 12/31/06:

- $42.9 million
Stock Price Range 2006:

$2.77-$5.65
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